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Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited (FILE NO. 82-34880)

submission of information filed with Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)

and Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC)

pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Please find attached copies of announcements lodged with the ASX and ASIC:
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1 September 2005 ASIC Form 484 — Change to Company Details 5
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7 September 2005 ASX CEO to Present at Biotechnology Conference 3
26 September 2005 ASIC Form 388 46
27 September 2005 ASX Release of Securities from Escrow 2
27 September 2005 ASX Annual Report 2005 & Notice of AGM 70
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Yours faithfully, ~
Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited OCT 18 208
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FINANCIAL '

4144

Belinda Shave

Financial Controller & Company Secretary

(MPSEC27-9-05.doc)

METABOL!C PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ABN 95 083 866 862
Level 3, 509 St Kilda Road, Melbourne, Victoria 3004, Australia | Telephone +61(3) 9860 5700

W

O

| Facsimile +61(3) 9860 5777 | Website www.metabolic.com.au
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Australian Securities & e No. 82-34880
Investments Commission

Form 484
LT Ln e Corporations Act 2001
Change to company detalls i
Sections A, B or C may be lodged independently with this signed cover page to notify ASIC of: R
A1 Change of address B1 Cease company officeholder C1 Cancellation of shares
A2 Change of name - officeholders or members B2 Appoint company officeholder €2 Issue of shares
A3 Change - ultimate holding company B3 Special purpose company C3 Change to share structure
C4 Changes to the register of members
If there Is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this !odgement
Company details ‘Companyname. L ] e i e e et
Metabolic Phqv che:uhc:cde L&m«h::d . |
Refer fo guide for information about -WABN e Corporaekey o
corpoete ke [96 083 Bbb %2 I i - PN T
Lodgement details Nho:should ASIC cont; uery aboutthisform?
Name
IMetabolic Pharmaceuvticals Limited |
iQ%QC>5700_WWWWH ’
‘Postal address : .
[Level 2 509 St Knao'Roaa
[Melbourne. Vi Boow R
Total hurmber of pages mc!udlng th:sfcoversheei - Plaase piovidé A estimate:of the fime taker to completé this
Signature

This form must be signed by a current officeholder of the company.
 certify that the: mformabon inithis cover shegt and the aﬂached $ections of this Tom are true and complete;

‘Name:

1 EJC—‘: inda %hcwa

Date signed

@l@l@l

Send completed and signed forms fo: For help or more Information

Lodgement . ;
ustralian Securities and Investments Commission, Telephone 03 5177 3988
PO Box 4000, Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841, Ema?l info.enouiries@asic

Web asie.qov,
Or lodga the form electronically by visifing the ASIC website ¢ Huasegonay

W, asic.gov.au
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This section allows a new address to be applied to one or more purposes (ie registered office, principal place of business, company officeholder or member).
You must copy and aftach another Section A1 for each new address.
 Atthe office of, CF (if apolicable) « .~ = .

New address .
A PO Box is only allowed for a member L ] » J
address  Ofice, it 6 , J ,
Streetnumberand Streetname w 4.:
“30\3 F\rrogo De _\/ls‘\"C\ NE B
Suburb/City _ e SlelefTerioy o
| _____biNew Me \coﬂ...,u ]
Date of change “

For members' address changes, use the
date of change to the members’ register

Apply address to D Reglstered gffice address
You can apply the new address toone or  fthe registered offics has changed does the corripany occupy the prémises?
more of the following — registered office, . ‘ N .
principal place of business, efc.

Registered office address

A change to the registered office
address takes effect either 7 days
after lodgement of the notice or a
later date specified in the notice.

5} [M M] [Y S
Place of birth (town/city). C (statelcountry): o . v

f

Member's address

If there are more than 20 members
in a share class, only address
changes for the top 20 need be
notified.

When a member is a company, not a.person
Company naie (only if 8 member) : .

lACN/ARBN/ABN o Countyofincomorafion (FrotAustalie) -

Section A Page 1 of 2

ASIC Form 484 26 February 2004




List details of new share issues in the following table.

Share class code  Number of stiafés issued © Amountunpaldipershars

[—Ordr‘norq 19,093, 771 | Ll cents Nid

Earlrest date of chérige
Pledse indicate-the earliest date that any ‘of the: above changes occurrecr

@l@@@@

list 4156 16dge a Form 2072

™y yes proprretary comp S
and: erther &Foim 208 0ra Gafy. of: the contra

DNO

ifno; propnetary compan ies are not required to provrde any further documents wrth th s form Pubhc companies must a!so lodge a Form 208

C3 Change to share structure

Where a change 1o the share structure table has occurred (eg. as a result of the issue or cancellation of shares), please show the updated detalls for the share classes

affected. Details of share classes not affected by the change are not required hera.
Shaie Full tile if ot standard : ‘
class code ’ : :

shares

brdr‘nC\rq _IlSLg-,Lr.\O,Q:Ol 61,58u- 4D [ Nil

Earligst date of change-
Please indicate the- earhest dare that any of the above changes occuirréd:
D} [ M

@@@l@@

Lodgement details

ASIC Form 484 ' 26 February 2004 Section C Page 3 of 5



Use this section to notify changes to the register of members for your company (changes to the shareholdings of members):

+  Ifthere are 20 members or less in a share class, all changes need fo be notified
If there are more than 20 members in a share class, only changes to the top twenty rieed be notified (s178B)

o

with whom the shares are joinfly owned

If shares are jointly owned, you must also provide names and addresses of all joint owners on a separate sheet (annexure), clearly indicating the share class and

The changes apply to

Please indicate the name and address

of the member whose shareholding has
changed OR

D  Compariy name:

Offce, i, lavel, of PO Box number

f

SteetnumbersndSetrame.

l

| SibubiCity__

| stateriy

Earliest date of change ‘. Date of: "hén ef'm" o
Please indicate the eariiest date that any D D D D D D

of the following changes occurred. O O M MY Y

The changes are

Shareclass:

code:

*Publicd

Date of entry of merﬁbér’s ﬁame in Dafeofentry
register D D ; D D D D
(I

(New members only) M M

ASIC Form 484 _ 26 February 2004
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Rank

1

12

13

20

AS AT 1 SEPTEMBER 2005

Name

Polychip Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd

Monash Investment Holdings Pty Ltd

National Nominees Limited

Jalitech Pty Ltd <Frank Man-Woon Ng A/C>

Peters Investments Pty Ltd

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <Cfsil Cwith Boff Super A/C>
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited

Niako Investments Pty Ltd

Schirm Private Equity Lp

Health Super Pty Ltd

Oceanfront Properties Pty Ltd <Isa Lei Super Fund A/C>
Mrs Kay Mitris

ANZ Nominees Limited

Oceanfront Properties Pty Ltd

Bermuda Trust (Guemsey) Ltd <Clover Account>

Mr David Kenley
Mr Frank Ng
Mr Charles Ovadia + Mrs Maureen Elizabeth Ovadia

Mr Barry Moran + Mrs Maureen Patricia Moran

(MPTop20-1-9-05.doc)

Address

10 Wallace Avenue
Toorak Vic 3142

Admin Building 3a
Monash University
Wellington Road

Clayton Vic 3168

P O Box 1406m
Melbourne Vic 3001

144 Edgevale Road
Kew Vic 3101

Po Box 137
Victoria Park WA 6979

Locked Bag 7
Royal Exchange NSW 1225

GPO Box 764g
Melbourne Vic 3001

50 Pitt Street,
Sydney NSW 2000

PoBox 1135
Clayton South Vic 3169

St James Chambers

64a Athol Street Douglas
Isle Of Man IM1 1JE
UK GBR

C/- National Nominees Limited
GPO Box 1406m
Melbourne Vic 3001

PO Box 261
Fremantle WA 6959

Po Box 1135
Clayton South Vic 3169

GPO Box 2842aa
Melbourme Vic 3001

Po Box 261
Fremantle WA 6959

Bermuda Ho St Julians Avenue
St Peter Port

Guernsey Gyl 3nf

Channel Islands, Cil

21 Halstead Street
Caulfield North Vic 3161

144 Edgevale Road
Kew Vic 3101

20/10 Levesinet Drive
Hunters Hill NSW 2110

Po Box 3120

Doonkuna Estate Winery
Barton Highway
Murrumbateman NSW 2582

Class Code
Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Ord

Units

48,012,701

21,677,520

9,347,344

5,002,480

4,500,000

3,685,774

2,644,584

2,351,574

2,069,256

1,639,344

1,367,500

1,365,496

1,100,000

1,081,904

1,058,196

1,005,500

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,600,000

980,000



ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGEC

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 01/09/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 14:31:48 Telephone 61 2 8227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED OX 10427 Stack Exchange Sydney

TFAX NO: 03-9860-5777
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

Change of Director's Interest Notice ~ ~ Roland &oitan

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX's (rading system. This means (hat trading in your company’s securilies is lemporarily stopped, lo
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open’ is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use

is 1900999 279.



Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/5/2001.
ame of entity METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
ABN 96 083 866 862

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director ROLAND SCOLLAY

Date of last notice 22 November 2002

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this
part.

Direct or indirect interest DIRECTLY HELD

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.

Date of change 30 AUGUST 2005

No. of securities held prior to change NIL

Class Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 20,000

Number disposed NIL

Value/Consideration

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated valuation $1 2 OOO
bl

No. of securities held after change 20,000 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
(ASX Code: MBP)

Nature of change

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back On market purchase.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page !



Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this
part.

Detail of contract NIL

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3Y Page 2 11/3/2002




FiHiE et ~ -
AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCHANGC ' \ .
Australian Steck Exchange Limited
ABN 88 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Levs! 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydnsy NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 07/09/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:56:54 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/faww.asx.com.au
TO: METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney

FAX NO: 03-9860-5777
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Metabolic CEO to Present at Biotechnology Conference

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your anncuncement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX's (rading system. This means thal trading in your company’s securities is lemporarily stopped, (o
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use

is 1900 999 279.
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metabolic

Metabolic Pharmaceuticals CEO to present at
biotechnology conference

7 September 2005

The CEO of Metabolic, Dr Roland Scollay, will be presenting a paper at the
Southern Cross Equities biotechnology conference entitled “DNA, Devices
and Dealers 2005” in Sydney today at 11.15am (program and details
available at: www.asx.com.au/investor/industry/biotech/seminars.htm). The
presentation addresses general issues surrounding the communication of
complex scientific data to the markets, using examples from Metabolic’s
recent Phase 2B human clinical trial on its obesity drug, AOD9604. A copy
of the presentation is available at www.metabolic.com.au, following the tabs
to Investor Relations and then to Presentations.

About Metabolic

Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited is a biotechnology company based in Melbourne, Australia,
and is listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX: MBP). The Company’s mission is to build a
substantial pipeline of innovative medicines, each of which will have a major impact on global
medical problems, to the benefit of patients and shaveholders alike. The Company currently has
development programs aimed at treating obesity (A0D9604), and neuropathic pain (ACVI).
Metabolic also has discovery programs targeting type 2 diabetes and, in collaboration with
Neuren Ltd, nerve protection and regeneration. For more information, please visit the
company’s website at www.metabolic.com.au.

Background to AOD9604

AOD9604 is a small, orally active peptide modelled on one segment of the human growth
hormone molecule. Growth hormone occurs naturally in the body and has profound stimulatory
effects on fat metabolism. Levels of the hormone are typically suppressed in the obese state and
with increasing age. Counteraction of this imbalance by daily dosing with AOD9604 is believed
to normalize suppressed fat metabolism in obese individuals, while avoiding unwanted effects of
the whole growth hormone molecule. AOD9604 has been through a Phase 2b clinical trial which
showed good indications of efficacy and an excellent tolerability profile, and a further dose
JSinding study will commence in Q4 this year, with expected completion in late 2000




Background to ACV1

ACV1 is the first in a potential new class of drugs to specifically treat neuropathic (nerve) pain.
Current therapies rely largely on the ‘off-label’ use of anticonvulsants, antidepressants and local
anaesthetics, which have unimpressive efficacy and dose-limiting side effects. The potential
range of indications for ACVI1 extends to neuropathic pain in diabetics, post-herpetic neuralgia
(“shingles”), sciatica and many other neuropathic pain conditions currently underserved by
pharmaceutical treatment.

ACV1 specifically blocks a subtype of a class of receptors in the peripheral nervous system called
neuronal nicotinic acetylcholine receptors (nAChR). ACVI can be administered by once daily
subcutaneous injections providing substantial relief in several animal models of neuropathic pain
without apparent adverse effects. A Phase 1 clinical trial began in June 2005 and will be
completed before the end of the year.

Contact Information:

Roland Scollay Peter Dawson Diana Attana

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Assistant Company Secretary/IRO
roland.scollay@metabolic.com.au peter.dawson@metabolic.com.au diana.attana@metabolic.com.au
Phone: +61-3-9860-5700 Phone: +61-3-9860-5700 Phone: +61-3-9860-5700

METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED A8N 95 083 866 862
Level 3, 509 St Kilda Road, Melbourne, Victosia 3004, Australia | Telephone +81(3) 9860 5700 | Facsimile +61{3) 9860 5777 | Website www.metabolic.com.au
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GilILe, 1EVe], BLIdING Rdiic OF FU pJa DU, l..e\!e.\ 3
street umber &name 50 o4 Kilda gooé
subud/elty Melbour me. state/territory \J{c_  postcode 300
telephore (03 ) QRLO S 100 T
facsimie (03 ) Q4 Bbo S 117 &Sﬁ.aggﬁa
DX number suburb/city - k - PROC.

"~ form 388

. . o Corporations Act 2001
% copy of financial statements and reports 294, 285, 208-300, 307, 308, 318, 321, 322

Corporations Regulations
1.0.08

Australian Securities & Investments Commission -

R

s

Name  Metabolic Pharmaceubcals Limited
ACN / ARBNARSNZRIN. O%ﬁ &g( R

Reason for lodgement of statements and reports

tick the appropriate box Q/ A public company or a disclosing entity which is not a registered scheme or prescribed interest undertaking (&)
[J Aregistered scheme* {8
[C] Amendment of financial statements or directors’ report (company) ©
{71 Amendment of financial statements or directors' report (registered scheme)* )}
A large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity H

A small proprietary company that is controlled by a foreign company for all or part of the period and where the
company's profit of loss for the period is not covered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a registered foreign

company, company, registered scheme, or disclosing entity {0
[T Asmall proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to prepare and lodge statements and reports ()
[7) A prescribed interest undertaking that is a disclosing entity {K)
Dates on which financial year begins |/ Ty 2004 and ends 230/ 61 2005 {@/msy)

Date of Annual General Meeting (if applicable) 2.9 / 1O 7/ 0§

]
Details of large proprietary company

If the company is a large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity, please compiete the following information as at the
end of the financial year for which the financial statements relate:

A What is the consolidated gross operating revenue of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?

B What s the value of the consolidated gross assets of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?

C How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and the entities that it cantrols?

D How many members does the large proprietary COMPany NaVe?.....co...cusvmuvinessesssmmsmemmessessssimnnse

R
Auditor report

Were the financial statements audited?  Yes B/ No D
If yes: Does the auditor's report (section 308) for the financial year contain a statement of:

* reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in section 3077 ves [ Mo B/
*  details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in section 3077 Yes O IQ/
If no: Is there a class order exemption current for audit relief? Yes D No

* NOTE: Where a new auditor has been appointed to a Registered Scheme, Form 5137 - Appointment of Scheme Auditor must be lodged




‘Ihe augitor can be & person or a firm.
If a person
name (family & given names)

Auditor Registration no:

office level building name
street number & name
suburb / city state / territary postcode
date of appointment (d/m/y) / /
or
if a firm
name of firm E\,n%* - \/O\_“,.‘g
office ~ level building name
steetrumber&name | sye| 23 . 120 Colling SHreet
subub /¢ty Me lbeour e state / termitory g\ posteode. SO OO

Business Registration number {if applicable) State / Teritory registered in

date of appointment @/mi} 2L/ {5 / 20072,

R ——
Statements and reports to be attached to this form

Financial statements for the year (as per 55295({2))
statement of financial performance for the year (profit and loss statement)
statement of financial posttion as at the end of the year (balance sheet)

statement of cash flows for the year
if required by accounting standards - consolidated profit & loss statement, balance sheet and statement of cash flows

Nates ta financial statements (as per s5295(3))

disclosures required by the requlations

notes required by the accounting standards

any other information necessary to give a true and fair view (see s297)

The directors’ declaration about the statements and nates (s per ss 295(4))

The directors’ report far the year (as per s 298 to 300)

Auditor’s report required under sections 308 and 314

Certification
| certify that the attached documents marked ( A ) are a true copy of the annual reports required under Section 319,

pitrame Belinda Shove apcity Company Secretary

sign here % dte 2b--09%

* NOTE: Where a new auditor has been appointed to a Registered Scheme, Form 5137 - Appointment of Scheme Auditor must be lodged

Smail Business (less than 20 employees), please provide an estimate of the time taken to complete this form

Include
The time actually spent reading the instructions, warking on the question and obtaining the information

The time spent by all employees in collecting and providing this information

hrs mins




Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited
("Metabolic”) resolved to submit the following report together with
the accounts in respect of the financial year ended 30 June, 2005,

Board of Directors

All Directors held their position as a Director throughout the entire

financial year.

This section contains the following information for each Director:

» each Director’s qualifications, experience and
special responsibilities;

» all directorships of other listed companies held by each
Director (at any time in the three years immediately before
the end of the financial year and period for which each
directorship has been held); and

* qualifications and experience of the Company Secretary.

Dr Arthur Emmett, Non-Executive Chairman, MB, BS

Dr Arthur Emmett received a medical degree at Sydney University
in 1959. For seven years from 1971 he was Medical Director of the
Australian affiliates of G.D. Searle, Parke Davis and W.S. Merrell,
Dr Emmett spent the next 20 years with Ciba Geigy (now Novartis).
In 1983 he was appointed Business Head North America, UK and
the Nordic area based in Switzerland and in 1988 was made Head
of Worldwide Medical Affairs. In 1989 he was appointed Senior
Vice-President, Medical & Public Affairs, based in the USA. In 1994
he was appointed President and Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Beijing Ciba Geigy Pharma Limited. Since 1997 Dr Emmett has
periodically acted as a health care consultant in China.

Dr Emmett brings to the Board a medical background, a wealth

of experience in drug development, the management of global
pharmaceutical companies and extensive experience as a Non-Executive
Director of biotechnology companies. Other listed directorships held
during 1 July 2002 and 30 June 2005: Proteome Systems Limited

(three months).

Dr Roland Scollay, CEO / Managing Director, BS¢, PhD, GAICD

Dr Roland Scollay was appointed CEO / Managing Director on

1 February 2005, having been a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since November 2002. Dr Scollay gained his PhD in
immunology at the John Curtin School of Medical Research in 1972 in
Canberra. He then spent 24 years as a research scientist, including 13
years at the prestigious Walter and Eliza Hall Institute and eight years at
institutions in the USA and Europe, publishing more than 150 papers
and articles. In the mid-nineties, he moved to the USA and worked in
two biotechnology companies (SyStemix and Genetic Therapy Inc) as
Vice President of Research and in Novartis, a global pharmaceutical
company, as a member of their global Research Management Board.

Dr Roland Scollay

Dr Arthur Emmett

in 2000 Dr Scollay tock a position as Chief Scientific Officer and
subsequently President and Chief Executive Office at Genteric, a San
Francisco based, venture capital funded, start-up company. He then
returned to Australia in 2002 to take a position at Monash University
as Director of Commercialisation within the Faculty of Medicine,
Nursing & Health Sciences.

Dr Scollay brings to the Board a strong scientific background

and a keen understanding of the commercial drug development
process, including insight into the workings of large pharmaceutical
companies. He also has extensive experience and training in the
management and governance of small companies, and in business
and finance. He is a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors. Other listed directorships held during 1 July 2002 and
30 June 2005: Nil.

Dr Chris Belyea, Chief Scientific Officer, BSc(Hons), PhD, FIPAA

Dr Belyea relinquished his role as the CEO / Managing Director of
Metabolic on 1 February 2005, to take up the position of Chief
Scientific Officer. Dr Chris Belyea received his PhD in physics from the
University of Melbourne and is a registered Patent Attorney. From
1991 Dr Belyea was a Patent Attorney with Griffith Hack & Co. and in
1996 joined Circadian Technologies Limited as Licensing and Projects
Manager. In 1998, he became the founding CEQ / Managing Directar
of Metabolic and occupied dual roles with Metabolic and Circadian
until devoting his activities full-time to Metabolic in 2001. He was also
the founding Managing Director of Antisense Therapeutics Limited in
2000, which listed on the ASX in 2001.

Dr Belyea brings to the Board the corporate memory of Metabolic,
strong scientific and patent skills, and extensive experience in the
creative management and growth of public biotechnology companies.
His responsibilities include identifying and selecting new research and
development opportunities to expand the Company’s pipeline. Other
listed directorships held during 1 July 2002 and 30 June 2005:
Antisense Therapeutics Limited (five years).

Dr Evert Vos, Non-Executive Director, BSc{Hons),
BMedSc, PhD, MD, MFPM

Dr Evert Vos, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, received

an honours degree in physiology and a PhD in pharmacology from
the University of Alberta in Canada. He earned a medical degree

from Memorial University of Newfoundland. Since 1977 he has
gained extensive experience in the pharmaceutical industry, working
initially with Smith Kline & French (now Glaxo Smith Kline), and
subsequently with Ciba Geigy Canada {now Novartis) as Director of
Clinical Investigation. For 11 years until 1997, he was a member of
the Management Committee as Vice President for Medical Affairs and
Research and Development for Ciba Pharmaceuticals. He has served




Dr Evert Vos

Dr Chiris Belyea

on the Boards of several scientific societies, as well as on national
committees including the Medical Research Council of Canada. Until
2002, Dr Vos held the full-time position of Director of Medical and
Regulatory Affairs. Currently he resides in Albuguerque, USA, where
he is in the Faculty of Medicine at the University of New Mexico and
is an attending physician in the Heart Failure Clinics of the Division of
Cardiology. Since moving to the USA, Dr Vos continues to contribute
as a consultant to Metabolic as Medical Director.

Dr Vos brings to the Board skills as a practicing physician and
extensive experience in medical and regulatory affairs from both
within and outside pharmaceutical companies. Other listed
directorships held during 1 July 2002 and 30 June 2005: Nil

Mr Patrick Sutch, Non-Executive Director

Mr Patrick Sutch, a Non-Executive Director of the Company since
May 2004, spent 26 years with the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation (now HSBC) gaining extensive international banking
experience, He left HSBC in 1992 as its Vice President - International
Marketing (Financial Institutions) New York. In 1993 he joined
NASDAQ International Limited, based in London and gained
significant experience in his role as Vice President and Managing
Director, Asia Pacific. He was responsible for identifying and assisting
companies in preparation for NASDAQ listings. In June 2000, he
received the NASDAQ President’s Award for outstanding performance
and dedicated service.

Mr Sutch brings to the Board extensive experience and connections
within global financial markets. Other listed directorships held
during 1 July 2002 and 30 June 2005: Nil

Ms Belinda Shave, Financial Controller / Company Secretary

Ms Belinda Shave worked for several years as a Legal Executive
before entering the pharmaceutical research and development
field, where, over the past 18 years, she has gained considerable
experience in the areas of financial management and compliance
matters. Ms Shave was initially employed by Circadian Technologies
Limited, a substantial shareholder of Metabolic. In 1998, she joined
Metabolic as Financial Controller and in September 2003, was
appointed Company Secretary. Ms Shave is an affiliate member

of Chartered Secretaries Australia.

Executive Management

This report outlines profiles of each Executive and their
respective key responsibility areas.

Dr Roland Scollay, CEQ / Managing Director, BS¢, PhD, GAICD
Refer to the Board of Directors section in this Directors’ Report

Mr Patrick Suich Ms Belinda Shave

Dr Chris Belyea, Chief Scientific Officer, BSc(Hons), PhD, FIPAA
Refer 1o the Board of Directors section in this Directors’ Report

Ms Belinda Shave, Financial Controller / Company Secretary

Refer to the Board of Directors section in this Directors’ Report

Dr Caroline Herd, Vice President — Clinical Development, BSc, PhD

Dr Caroline Herd returned to Australia in November 2001, after
working in the UK for 12 years, to join Metabolic as Associate
Director - Drug Development and in Aprif 2002 became Vice
President ~ Clinical Development. Dr Herd received her PhD in
pharmacology from the University of Adelaide in 1990. Her doctoral
studies included both clinical and pre-clinical research conducted at
the Royal Adelaide Hospital and at Sandoz AG, Basel, respectively.
Her post-doctoral studies were conducted in the Department of
Pharmacology, Kings College London, in the areas of thrombosis
and respiratory disease. During this time she was involved in
collaborations with numerous research institutions, including the
Pasteur Institute, Paris and the University of Perugia, !taly.

—

in 1998 Dr Herd joined AstraZeneca (formerly Astra Pharmaceuticals)
in Loughborough, UK, where she was involved in the dlinical
development of new drugs. Dr Herd is experienced in a range of
therapeutic areas gained both within academia and industry. She

is the author of over 25 papers, book chapters and review articles.

Dr Herd is responsible for the management of Metabolic's
clinical programs,

Dr Mary Saleh, Vice President - Research, BSc(Hons), PhD

Dr Mary Saleh was appointed Vice President - Research in 2000.
Dr Saleh received her PhD in Neurobiology from the Walter

and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research, The University of
Melbourne in 1988. She conducted her post-doctoral research
at the prestigious Salk Institute for Biological Studies in La Jolla,
California, where she was a member of the Center for Human
(chromosome 11) Genome Research team.

Upon her return to Australia in 1992, Dr Saleh joined Prince Henry's
Institute for Medical Research. She then joined the Department of
Surgery at The University of Melbourne in 1993, where she initiated
and managed a successful Gene Therapy research laboratory aimed
at developing new therapies for brain tumours. Dr Saleh has trained
numerous students and post-doctoral scientists during her career,

Dr Saleh is experienced in many aspects of academic and commercial
research and has over 40 publications and articles, including original
papers in peer-reviewed journals. Dr Saleh is responsible for the
coordination and management of scientific research conducted

by the Company in support of its development projects.
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Dr Mary Saleh

Dr Caroline Herd

Mr David Smith, Manufacturing Manager, BSc

Foilowing the completion of his studies in Industrial Chemistry in
1985, Mr Smith moved from Ireland to the UK to work for Sterling-
Winthrop at their Northumberiand facility, Mr Smith worked in a
variety of manufacturing roles relating to the manufacture of drug
substances for Sterling Drug and third party contract manufacture.

In 1989, following the acquisition of Sterling-Winthrop by Eastman-
Kodak, Mr Smith joined Eastman Chemical Company as International
Business Development Manager for the Fine Chemical Division,
managing third party manufacture of pharmaceuticals, agrochemicais
and photo chemicals. Mr Smith joined Sigma-Aldrich in 1994 and
worked in a number of positions including Vice President - Operations
for their European Fine Chemical Division and Vice President - Global
Business Development for Fine Chemicals. Mr Smith joined Metabolic
in August 2003 after moving to Melbourne from the UK.

Mr Smith is responsible for managing contractors for the
manufacturing and formutation of clinical supplies and overall
project management.

Dr Andrea McCracken, Research Manager, BAppSc (Hons), PhD

Dr Andrea McCracken obtained her PhD in molecular microbiology
from Queensland University of Technology in 1999. Her post-doctoral
research was conducted at the University of Texas — Houston Health
Science Center where she studied bacterial transcription factors.

Dr McCracken joined Cubist Pharmaceuticals (Boston) in 2001

where she was involved in mechanism studies of antibiotics.

Dr McCracken returned to Australia in 2002 to take up the position
of applications specialist for Ciphergen Biosystems (USA), a role

in which she supported and collaborated with academic and
commercial researchers using protein chip technology.

Dr McCracken joined Metabolic in July 2003 and is responsible
for the management of pre-clinical drug development and
analytical support programs.

Principal Activities

Metabolic is building a pipeline of innovative pharmaceutical
compounds with the aim of providing important drugs for major
world markets. The Company’s primary focus has been, and remains,
the clinical development of AOD9604, Metabolic’s most advanced
compound, with the aim of providing an improved prescription
obesity drug with a unique mode of action. Increasingly important

is the clinical development of the Company’s second drug, ACV1

for pain, which entered a Phase 1 human clinical trial in June 2005,

on schedule.

Mr David Smith Dr Andrea McCracken

The principal activities of the Company during and since the period
under review were:
* completion of dosing for a 300-patient multi-centre
Phase 2B human clinical trial for AOD9604;
¢ announcement of results of the Phase 2B human clinica! trial
for AOD9604 in December 2004;
* planning and preparation for a Phase 2B human clinical trial dose
finding study of AOD9604, scheduled to commence in late 2005;
* completion of a pre-clinical package for ACV1; 7
* commencement of a Phase 1 human clinical trial for ACV1
in June 2005,
» collaboration with New Zealand-based Neuren
Pharmaceuticals Limited;
* continued development of pre-clinical compounds;
* initiation of a Level 1 American Depositary Receipts (ADR)
program in the USA; and
* ongoing evaluation of potential compounds for in-license
or acquisition.

Employees & Operating Model

Metabolic currently employs 20 full-time and part-time permanent
employees, comprised of 12 head office corporate employees
and eight laboratory employees.

The Company’s operating model is to make optimum use of outsourcing
10 expert contractors and consultants on a worldwide basis to gain access
1o the best possible expertise in each facet of the Company’s development
operations. Metabolic’s contracting and consultancy network is worldwide,
concentrated mostly in North America and Europe but also increasingly in
Australia, covering alf aspects of the drug development process including
toxicology, manufacturing, formulation, clinical trials and regulatory affairs.

These outsourcing activities are closely controlled by the Company's
growing team, now numbering seven specialists in clinical, pre-clinical,
scientific and manufacturing development.

Metabolic's Board oversees the strategic direction of the Company and
has the benefit of high level international experience in finance, dlinical
development and pharmaceutical marketing.

In tandem with outsourced activities, Metabolic's internal laboratory
supports key aspects of the pre-clinical and clinical development and
scientific research into basic mechanisms of the Company’s development
compounds. The laboratory has continued to expand its capabilities as
specific needs are identified, with eight scientists employed in a dedicated
leased facility at the Baker Heart Research Institute in Melbourne, just

a few hundred metres from the corporate office.
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Review of Operations

Clinical Stage Projects

Introduction

During 2004, Metabolic completed the Phase 2B human clinical trial
of AODS604. This trial revealed that AOD9604 had & broader range
of effective doses than predicted, with the best activity achieved at
the lowest dose, an unexpected finding. This has resulted in delays
in development of approximately 18 months as we learn more about
the optimal dose. The trial did show that AODS604 had an excellent
safety profile and competitive efficacy, thereby reducing two of the
main risk factors for the further development of the compound.

The new dose finding study will begin in the fourth quarter of 2005.

During the period under review, Metabolic added a second

drug to the clinic with the commencement, on schedule, of

a Phase 1 human clinical trial for ACV1, the Company's peptide
drug for pain. Subject to a positive outcome of this trial, a Phase
2A human clinical trial should begin in the second quarter of
2006. Having two drugs with high potential in Phase 2 human
clinical trials will place Metabolic among the leading biotechnology
organisations in Australia. The diagram below shows the development
stages of Metabolic’s various projects, including those in the
pre-clinical stage. As discussed earlier, Metabolic will be seeking

to add additional drugs to the dinical development pipeline over

the next few of years.

AQODS604
Background to Obesity and the Metabolic Syndrome

Obesity is a condition now suffered by more than 20% of the
adult population in developed countries, or more than 300

million adults worldwide. in addition, more than 50% of adults

in developed countries are overweight and are potential candidates
for pharmaceutical intervention. Obesity is the western world's
most common health problem.

In recent years, increasing emphasis has been placed by governments
throughout the world on this growing public health concern. One
USA study found that obesity is nearly three times more dangerous
than smoking, with the health costs of the obese 77% higher than
the non-obese, compared with 28% higher for smokers.

Currently, the two most popular obesity drugs act to suppress food
intake, either by affecting the brain to reduce appetite or by affecting
the gut to reduce absorption of dietary fat. Both are accompanied by

significant side effects.

On the other side of the fat storage equation from food intake is the
way the body stores and metabolises energy sources. There is growing
interest in understanding and targeting the fundamental metabolic
changes which accompany and may exacerbate obesity, loosely
grouped under the term “metabolic syndrome” or “syndrome X*.
One of the changes occurring in metabolic syndrome is a reduction

in the levels of growth hormone.

! Research

A0D9604
(obesity)

ACV1
(pain)

ADD
(type 2 diabetes)

NRP
(Neuro-regenerative
Peptides)

! Pre<clinical | Phase 1 i Phase 2

i Phase 3 i Commercialisation




The AOD9604 Technology

Metabolic acquired AOD9604 in its pre-clinical stage from Monash
University. AODS604 acts on fat metabolism and is modelled on the
active fat reducing portion of the human growth hormone molecule.

Growth hormone occurs naturally in the body and is involved in
promoting growth, particularly in children and adolescents. However,

it also has a profound metabolic role throughout life. Blood levels of
growth hormone normally decline as an individuat ages, but the obese
state also brings about low growth hormone levels as part of the
metabolic syndrome. A consequence of low growth hormone levels is
a reduced ability to metabolise (burn) fat. Intact growth hormone is not
feasible as an obesity treatment due to its unwanted effects on growth
and other side effects, and is currently marketed only as a treatment
for short stature or other specific growth hormone deficiencies.

The key idea of the Company's technology, first invented in 1996,
is that only a small fragment at one end of the growth hormone
molecule is needed to produce the beneficial effects on fat
metabaolism, and this fragment does not produce the undesirable
growth effects. AOD9604 is a chemically synthesized molecule that
is similar to the active small fragment at the end of the growth
hormone molecule. AOD9504, when dosed orally once per day,
retains the benefits of the intact growth hormone molecule on fat
metabolism, without the unwanted growth effects.

AQD9604 may provide a more effective and better tolerated
treatment for obesity than existing obesity drugs. If the AOD9604
clinical development succeeds, the drug will be the first obesity drug
primarily acting on a specific metabolic deficit in obesity. This targeted
approach and anticipated high level of tolerability could lead to a high
level of doctor and patient acceptance.

independent Research / Forecasts

As existing medications for obesity fall well short of satisfying patient
needs, the development of improved obesity medications is a high
opportunity research area, The best results achieved in dinical

trials with existing drugs show that there is considerable room for
improvement in both efficacy and the side effect profile. The limited
usefulness and undesirable side effect profile of existing drugs account
for the fact that total worldwide annual sales of prescription obesity
drugs are only approximately US$1 billion in a potential market
estimated at US$30 billion or more.

Competitive Environment and Market Positioning

Obesity treatments capture the public imagination and over the years
many compounds derived from natural plant or animal extracts have

been sold accompanied by extravagant weight reducing claims. Such
compounds have rarely, if ever, been subjected to the rigors of proper
scientific testing required for prescription drugs.

The competitive environment for AOD9604 is the current and future
prescription market for obesity drugs. The current prescription market
is dominated by two oral drugs which reduce calorie intake, one which
reduces calorie intake by acting in the gut to reduce the digestion of
fats in the diet (Xenical®) and another which reduces calorie intake

by acting in the brain to reduce appetite (Meridia®). Both drugs have
significant side effect issues.

The only other drug which is further along the development path than
AQODY604 is Acomplia (pharmaceutical: Sanofi-Aventis) which functions
as an appetite suppressant. This drug has completed a Phase 3 human
clinical trial and is awaiting approval for market. If this drug proves
successful in the market, it will be entirely complementary to AOD9604
rather than in competition with it. Detailed tables on the competitive
environment for AODS604 can be viewed in the Our Business section
on www.metabolic.com.au.

Clinical Development Progress

AOD9604 passed the initial single-dose safety phase of clinical
development (Phase 1 human clinical trial) in 2001 in non-obese
subjects. In 2002 and 2003, short term trials in obese male subjects
established that the drug is active on fat metabolism after both
intravenous and oral administration.

During 2004, the Company completed the first weight loss trial on
AOD9604. The double-blinded, placebo-controlled Phase 2B human
clinical trial was conducted to internationally accepted standards at
five specialty hospital-based obesity clinics in Melbourne (two sites),
Adelaide, Sydney and Brisbane.

The primary aim of the trial was to measure weight loss and fat loss
after 12 weeks of daily oral dosing in 300 obese males and females,

compared to placebo.

The results of the trial provided evidence that AOD9604 has competitive
efficacy on both weight and waistline, and based on the resuits so far,
shows excellent tolerability as an obesity therapy. In addition, beneficial
trends were seen in cholesterol profiles and in the risk of developing
type 2 diabetes, the two major health risks associated with obesity.
Although the primary end point (weight loss at 3 months) at the 1 mg
dose was just outside statistical significance, the secondary end point
(rate of weight loss over 3 months) was highly significant and strongly
supported by numerous other significant comparisons and trends within

the overall data set.

As the lowest dose (1 mg) used in the trial was the most effective,

a further Phase 2 human clinical trial is needed to confirm the findings
and to assess whether a daily dose slightly lower than 1 mg may be
the most effective. This study will explore doses of 0.25, 0.5 and 1 mg
compared to placebo and will extend the total treatment period to

24 weeks. This study is expected to begin in late 2005, and dosing

is expected to be completed in late 2006.
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Laboratory studies conducted since the conclusion of the clinical
trial support the concept that lower doses may be as or more
effective then the 1 mg dose and like the trial, showed a peak
of activity at lower doses.

Based on the current Food & Drug Administration (FDA) guideline

for the clinical evaluation of weight-control drugs, the final stage of
clinical testing prior to marketing approval, the Phase 3 human clinical
trial, requires approximately 1,500 patients treated for one year, with
approximately one third of those patients being treated for an extra
year as a safety follow-up. This means a Phase 3 study would take

at least two years and cost a minimum of A$30 miltion.

Manufacturing Development

The Company is well advanced in the development of a feasible
manufacturing process to supply Phase 3 human clinical trial
medication and market supply of AOD9604 with a European
contractor. Now that the optimal effective dose has been established
to lie at or below 1 mg daily, the economics and availability of
infrastructure for market scale manufacture using conventional
chemical synthesis methods is assured.

USA Clinical Advisory Panet

In addition to collaborating with the opinion leaders in our local
region, Metabolic has a USA Clinical Advisory Panel which comprises
three eminent USA obesity experts, to advise and consult with
Metabolic on the further clinical development of AOD9604

in the USA context. The panel members are:

e DrLouis Aronne - Professor of Medicine at Cornell University
in New York and current President of the North American
Association for the Study of Obesity;

e Dr George Bray - Boyd Professor at Louisiana State University
(LSU) and Professor of Medicine at the LSU Medical Center; and

« Dr Michael Jensen - Professor of Medicine at Mayo Clinic
(Former President of the North American Association for

the Study of Obesity).

Government Support

The Phase 2B human clinical trial on AOD9604 was supported
in part by an Australian Government START grant of A$2.1
million from Ausindustry.

ACV1

Background to Chronic and Neuropathic Pain

Pain is the most common symptom for which patients seek medical
attention. It is experienced by people worldwide, both young and old.
A survey conducted in the USA estimated that four out of 10 adults
experience pain daily and nine out of 10 experience pain monthly,
Drugs used for the management of pain form a large segment

of the pharmaceutical market.

Neuropathic {“nerve”) pain is the most difficult form of pain to

treat. Neuropathic pain is a form of chronic pain, which is persistently
generated and serves no beneficial function for the affected individual.
Patients suffering neuropathic pain typically present with a range

of symptoms, including allodynia (pain from a normally non-painful
stimulus), hyperalgesia (an increased response 10 a painful stimulus)
and spontaneous pain.

The ACV1 Technology

The molecule now known as ACV1 was discovered by Associate
Professor Bruce Livett and fellow scientists associated with the
University of Melbourne. Metabolic acquired an exclusive worldwide
license to the ACV1 technology from the inventors, in late 2003.

ACV1is a 16 amino acid peptide compound discovered in the venom
of the Australian marine cone snail, Conus Victoriae, one of a class

of cone snails which prey on shellfish. Cone snails have evolved a rich
cocktail of peptides.in their venom, which act together by a variety

of mechanisms in the nervous system to quickly immobilise or kill their
prey. These peptides are known as conotoxins - small, disulphide-rich
peptides that each potently and specifically target channels or receptors
in the nervous system.

In mammals, ACV1 is safe but has profound direct effects on pain
sensing nerves in the peripheral nervous system called C-fibres. It
blocks a subtype of a broad class of receptors called neuronal nicotinic
acetylcholine receptors (NAChR) which reside on the C-fibres. ACV1
has been shown to directly reduce the sensitivity of C-fibres. It is the
first drug to utilise this biochemical mechanism.

ACV1 has been tested in several well-established animal pain models
and shows efficacy in relieving the characteristic pain symptoms of

neuropathy, allodynia and hyperalgesia, following subcutaneous (s.c.)
or intramuscular (i.m.) dosing. In addition, evidence suggests that

ACV1 accelerates the recovery of injured nerves and tissues.
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The vertical axis shows increasing ability to tolerate a light touch in a
hypersensitized animal ~ in other words, improvement in neuropathic
pain. The improvement is maintained for at least 10 days following
cessation of treatment, suggesting long-term recovery of the nerves.

Figure 2. ACV1 reduces levels of markers of tissue damage
(oxidative stress) following 4 weeks of once-daily
treatment to rats with drug-induced diabetic
nerve pain. Mean £ SEM.
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The vertical axes show fevels of biochemical indicators of nerve
damage. In both cases, these indicators are significantly reduced
following the treatment with ACV1.

The first target clinical indication for ACV1 is neuropathic pain
associated with diabetes, a market with billion dollar annual sales
potential. However the potential range of indications for ACV1
extends to postherpetic neuralgia (“shingles” pain), sciatica and
many other neuropathic pain conditions currently underserved
by pharmaceutical treatments.

Independent Research / Forecasts

Neuropathic pain, the lead indication for ACV1, is suffered by 1%

of the western world’s population, with conditions such as diabetic
neuropathy, postherpetic neuralgia and trigeminal neuralgia. Analysts
predict that a safe and effective therapy for neuropathic pain would
gain immediate acceptance by doctors because the current treatments
are largely ineffective. With such a large market for analgesics to

treat neuropathic pain, an effective therapy could potentially reap

significant rewards.

The total global pain drug market is approximately US$40 billion

and projected to grow to US$75 billion by 2010 (Espicom Business
Intelligence, 2005). The prescription drug market for neuropathic
pain (the current market targeted for ACV1) is currently US$2.5
billion and is forecast to grow to US$5.5 billion by 2010 (Espicom
Business Intelligence, 2005). Until recently, only one drug (Neurontin)
has addressed this market segment, with only one third of patients
gaining clinically significant relief. Neurontin had global sales in 2004
of US$2.7 billion (including some use for seizures).
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Description of Competitive Environment

Neuropathic pain typically responds poorly to conventional analgesics
such as morphine or aspirin. Current therapy for neuropathic pain
relies largely on the 'off-label’ use of anticonvulsants, antidepressants
and local anaesthetics, which have well-documented side effects,
including in some cases addiction and only limited efficacy for this
indication. Only a small number of treatments have been approved for
neuropathic pain syndromes, including carbamazepine, gabapentin,
pregabalin and duloxetine, However not all patients obtain clinically
significant pain relief. In addition, side effects such as somnolence,
nausea, dizziness and fatigue are common. Detailed tables on the
competitive environment for ACV1 can be viewed in the Our Business
section on www.metabolic.com.au.

Clinical Development Progress

Since in-licensing of the worldwide rights to ACV1 in late 2003,
excellent progress has been made on the ACV1 development
program. A comprehensive pre-clinical safety package was completed
on schedule early in 2005, intended to support early phase clinical
testing of up to one month duration in humans.

In June 2005, a Phase 1 human clinical trial (safety trial) was
commenced on schedule. At the time of writing this report,

the randomised, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial is being
conducted in up to 60 healthy male volunteers. The main aim
is to assess the safety, tolerability, and pharmacokinetics of both
single doses and multiple (7) daily doses of ACY1 administered
by subcutaneous injection.

The trial is expected to be completed and results announced by the
end of 2005. A positive outcome would allow Phase 2 human clinical
trials (safety and efficacy trials) in patients suffering from neuropathic
pain to be conducted in 2006.

The first indication targeted for ACV1 in Phase 2 human clinical trials
is likely to be diabetic neuropathy, the neuropathic pain experienced
by diabetic patients. However, as stated earlier, the potential range of
indications for ACV1 extends to postherpetic neuralgia (“shingles”),
sciatica and many other neuropathic pain conditions currently
underserved by pharmaceutical treatments.

Although ACV1 is currently administered subcutaneously, other
delivery modes, such as nasal or oral are currently under investigation.

Government Support

The Phase 1 human clinical trial on ACV1 is being supported in part by
an Ausindustry Commercial Ready Grant of approxim ately A$450,000,
announced in June 2005.

Building the Pipeline — Discovery Stage Projects

Introduction

The two drugs that Metabolic has in the clinic to date were developed
in-house from pre-clinical projects, taken through further pharmacology,
toxicity studies and human research ethics committee approval into

the various clinical trials. This is a very cost effective way of building
Metabolic's pipeline. Metabolic is investing modest resources in discovery
research projects which could also lead to new high value drugs which
would go through the same process. These projects remain relatively low
profile until there is-some more certainty that they will lead to a dlinical
outcome. Whilst these pre-clinical projects may not add significantly

to the market valuation of Metabolic, they do represent an important
potential source of new drugs for the Company.

Neuro-regenerative Peptides (NRPs)

In March 2005 Metabolic entered into a collaboration with

New Zealand-based Neuren Pharmaceuticals Limited (ASX code: NEU)
“Neuren”, to co-develop Neuren’s class of Neuro-regenerative Peptides
{NRPs) for the treatment of degenerative conditions such as peripheral
neuropathy, motor neuron disease and repairing the brain or nerves
after injuries such as spinal cord injury. Neuren and Metabolic will jointly
develop the NRPs project with all intellectual property and commercial
outcomes to be equally shared.

The joint collaboration had been awarded NZ$635,000 (A$580,000)
in grant funding from the Australia New Zealand Biotechnology
Partnership Fund which is part of the New Zealand Government's
Growth and Innovation Framework, designed to assist and speed
collaboration between New Zealand and Australian biotechnology
companies. The grant will meet 25% of the eligible project costs
with Neuren contributing 25% and Metabolic 50%.

The NRPs are a novel class of small peptides disptaying a range of
biological effects important in bath protection and regeneration of
nervous system tissue. Neuren scientists have discovered a neuroactive
factor present in the brain tissue of developing animals and from this
initial work a family of human genes has been identified. The NRPs are
designed from those genes, possess a broad array of effects on nervous
tissue and are active at extremely low concentrations, protecting the
nerve cells against injury and encouraging repair and regrowth.

Experiments performed by Neuren to date on animal models of
human disease including stroke and multiple sclerosis have shown
potent protective activity. The broad range of effects of the NRPs
presents many possible applications to treat diseases of the nervous
system for which there is significant need for improved therapies.




Neuren and Metabolic are working together to develop a lead
compound for clinical development and assess its efficacy in a range
of animal models of neuropathic conditions, including large market
diseases of the peripheral nervous system such as diabetic neuropathy,
motor neuron disease and extremely challenging conditions such as
regrowth of nerves after spinal cord injury.

When sufficient supporting data are in hand the companies intend to
promote the lead molecule into formal pre-clinical development and
to enter into clinical development for the most promising indication.

Type 2 Diabetes

Metabolic has an interest in novel compounds for the treatment of
type 2 diabetes and is conducting research to identify a candidate
compound suitable for clinical development. This work is continuing.

Laboratory

In addition to the outsourcing activities which help drive the
pre-ctinical and clinical development of Metabolic’s projects, the
ability to engage in sophisticated in-house scientific and technical
experimentation is a key asset of the Company.

Metabolic employs eight highly skilled scientists located in leased
laboratory premises at the Baker Heart Research (nstitute, close to
Metabolic’'s Head Office in Melbourne. The activities of the laboratery
support the development of the Company's projects by enhancing
the scientific understanding of the compounds in development

and in development of assay methods.

The laboratory houses all of the scientific expertise and state of the art
equipment required to undertake research programs encompassing
protein chemistry, cell biology and analytical chemistry. This has
enabled Metabolic to conduct basic research in areas such as the
mechanism of action of its lead drugs as wel! as research support for
ongoing clinical trials, including stability bicassays and capsule/tablet
release testing. The Company’s highly skilled staff have been trained
to comply with industry standards in all aspects of occupational health
and safety and radiation safety. Metabolic's laboratory is a certified
Physical Containment Level 2 (PC2) facility.

Patents and Publications

A comprehensive list of published patents, patent applications,
scientific articles and presentations on the Company'’s projects can
be viewed in the Our Business section on www.metabolic.com.au.

METABDLIL PHERMALEUTICALT &

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

Except as otherwise set out in this report, the Directors are unaware
of any significant changes in the state of affairs or principal activities
of the Company that occurred during the period under review.

Financial Results & Position

The loss by the Company for the year ended 30 June 2005

after the provision for income tax of nil was A$10,764,589

(2004: A$9,543,526). This result has been achieved after fully
expensing all research, development, and patent costs, amounting

to A$8,958,840. income for the pericd totalled A$792,288, including
interest income of A$675,515 and grant income of A$116,773.

Metabolic currently has approximately A$19 million in cash
reserves. These funds should be sufficient to complete the

Phase 2 human clinical trial (dose finding study) for AOD9604,
and to complete the current Phase 1 human dlinical trial for ACV1.

Metabolic has no borrowings.
Funding Arrangements

Capital Raisings
During the period under review capital raised included:

o A$1,817,817 from the exercise of 2,914,102 unlisted options
(ASX codes: MBPAU; MBPAM; MBPAQ; MBPAQ; MBPAS); and

*  A$10,000,000 from the issue of 16,393,446 ordinary fully
paid shares at A$0.61 per share, through a private placement
o domestic and offshore institutional, professional and
sophisticated investors.

Ausindustry Grant

During the period under review Metabolic was awarded a
Commercial Ready grant of approximately A$450,000 for ACV1.

Dividends

No amounts have been recommended by the Directors that should
be paid by way of dividend by the Company during the period under
review. No cash dividends have been paid or declared since the
beginning of the financial year by the Company.
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Earnings Per Share

Cents
Basic earnings per share (4.68)
Diluted earnings per share (4.68)

As the Company made a loss for the year ended 30 June 2005,
potential ordinary shares, being options to acquire ordinary shares,
are considered non-dulutive and therefore not included in the
diluted earnings per share calculation.

Strategic Overview
Metabolic's corporate strategy for the next two to three years includes
three main components that aim to increase sharehoider value:

1. Continue the development of Metabolic’s existing clinical stage
drugs AOD3604 and ACV1 as efficiently as practicable;

2. Provide the necessary capital either through the issue of further
equity or through the proceeds of partnering Metabolic's existing
drugs; and

3. Expand the pipeline with additional clinical stage drugs.

Clearly, the main activities for Metabolic relate to advancing its
two clinical stage drugs, AOD9604 and ACV1. Success with either
one could produce important drugs with major benefits for the

shareholders of the Company and the Australian biotechnology sector.

However, there is strong rationale to lock beyond these two drugs
and add additional promising clinical stage drugs to Metabolic’s
pipeline, namely:

* To create more value from our core competency;
s To build critical mass, diversify and reduce risk; and
» To generate more news flow and increased liguidity.

The Board believes it can access the resources to progress an
expanded pipeline at the optimal rate, without negatively impacting
on Metabolic’s existing clinical programs. it is the intention of the
Company to add at least one or two clinical stage drugs to the
pipeline over the next few years, if suitable candidates can be found.

In the past, Metabolic has acquired new drugs at the pre-clinical
stage from research institutions and taken them through pre-clinical
development and into clinical testing. This is a very cost effective way
to add projects, but typically it takes at least two years to move a
laboratory project into clinical trial, where the industry places the
most value. We will continue this approach.

In order to reach critical mass more quickly, Metabolic may also access
drugs which are either very close 1o, or already in the clinic. This can be
done by in-licensing, collaborations, or merger and acquisition activity,
and all these strategies will be regularly reviewed by the Board. it is the
view of the Board that for Metabolic, ¢ritical mass could mean at least
four to five high potential drugs in clinical development.

As with Metabolic’s current practice, new drugs entering the pipeline
must address major existing or potential markets and have some clear
competitive advantage. These may or may not be in the same therapeutic

areas as the Company’s existing drugs.

Metabolic intends to fund its expansion strategy by raising capital against
specific initiatives when the time arises, and/or to use the proceeds of
partnering deals around its existing drugs.

Partnerships with Major Pharmaceutical Companies

Securing a licensing arrangement with a global pharmaceutical company
partner for late stage (Phase 3 human clinical trial) development and
marketing is the normal path to market for a development stage
biotechnology company such as Metabolic,

In relation to AODS604, Metabolic's management has had or is

in discussion with more than half of the top twenty multinational
pharmaceutical companies. All have expressed high levels of interest in
the drug and in the outcome of the upcoming dose finding study. Some
have chosen to wait for the outcome of that study, while others are
currently looking at ways to engage with the Company in the meantime.
It is envisaged that a more lucrative deal could be entered into upen
completion of the dose finding study, however, an earlier deal would
facilitate the strategic activities discussed above. The various options are
under continuous review by management and the Board.

In relation to ACV1, there is already considerable partner interest which
management is following. Again, the timing must take into account the
strategic as well as the absolute value of any deal.

Collaborations

Entering into early stage collaborations with fellow biotechnology
campanies can reap future benefits from risk sharing and synergies.

Earlier this year Metabolic entered a collaboration with New Zealand-
based Neuren Pharmaceuticals Limited (ASX code: NEU) "Neuren”,
whereby Metabolic is working with Neuren to develop Neuro-regenerative
Peptides (NRPs) that have potential in treating degenerative diseases of
the nervous system. The inclusion of these NRPs in Metabolic’s research
pipeline gives the Company a strong focus in the area of neurobiology,
with ACV1 addressing neuropathic pain. Evidence suggests that ACV1
may also have its own neuro-protective characteristics.




Likely Developments

In the 2005-06 financial year, Metabolic expects to:

» complete a Phase 1 human clinical trial for ACV1;

* commence a Phase 2B human clinical trial for AOD9604;

* commence the next human clinical trial for ACV1;

* progress development of early stage compounds;

* evaluate other potential compounds for possible in-licensing; and
* raise further capital for strategic initiatives as required.

In the opinion of the Directors it would prejudice the interests of
the Company to provide additional information, except as contained
in this report, relating to likely developments in the operations of
the Company.

Board Monitoring

The Board monitors the Company's overall performance, from its
implementation of the mission statement and strategic plan through
to the performance of the Company against operating plans and
financial budgets.

Board and Committee Meetings

The number of meetings of the Board of Directors, Board Committees
and Director attendance at those meetings during the year under
review was:

Director Fuli Board Audit Remuneration
Total number 6 3 3

of meetings

Dr Arthur Emmett 6 3 3

Dr Roland Scollay 6 3 3

Dr Chris Belyea 6 - -

Dr Evert Vos 5(6) - -

Mr Patrick Sutch 6 3 2(3)

Where a Director did not attend all meetings of the Board or
refevant Committee, the number of meetings for which the Director
was eligible to attend is shown in brackets. For further details
regarding the Board and Committees please refer to the Corporate
Governance Statement.

Directors’ Shareholdings and Declared Interests

As at the date of this report the interests of the Directors in the
Company's shares are:
Shares held indirectly

Director Shares held directly

Dr Arthur Emmett 257,692 136,500
Dr Roland Scollay - -
Dr Chris Belyea 224,077 240,000
Dr Evert Vos 283,077 -

Mr Patrick Sutch -

As at 30 June, 2005 and as at the date of this report, no Director has
an interest in any contract or proposed contract with Metabalic other

than as disclosed in the Company's Annual Report.

Further details on the equity interests of Directors can be found in the
Annual Financial Report (Note 14).

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers

During the period under review, the Company indemnified its
Directors, Company Secretaries and Executive Officers in respect of
any acts or omissions giving rise to a liability to another person (other
than the Company or a related party) unless the liability arose out

of conduct involving a lack of good faith. In addition, the Company
indemnified the Directors and Company Secretaries against any
liability incurred by them in their capacity as Directors or Company
Secretary in successfully defending civil or criminal proceedings in
relation to the Company. No monetary restriction was placed on

this indemnity.

The Company has insured its Directors, Company Secretaries and
Executive Officers for the period under review. Under the Company’s
Directors’ and Officers" Liabilities insurance Policy, the Company
shall not release to any third party or otherwise publish details of the
nature of the liabilities insured by the policy or the amount of the
premium. Accordingly, the Company relies on section 300(9) of the
Corporations Act 2001 to exempt it from the requirement to disclose
the nature of the lighility insured against and the premium amount

of the relevant policy.

BMETRBOLIC PHARMACEUTILALS LiMITEDL . ANHUAL REPURT 20835




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Significant Events After the Balance Date

Metabolic raised A$4.04 million in its Share Purchase Plan (SPP) offer
to shareholders, which closed on Friday 15 July, 2005. This offer
resulted in the issue of 6,628,833 shares at a price of $0.61 per share.

With the exception of the above capital raising, the Directors are
not aware of any matter or circumstance since the end of the
financial year, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements that has significantly affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or
the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent financial years.

Environmental Regulation

Other than the general laboratory standards and guidelines, Metabolic
is not subject to significant environmental regulations.

Inherent Risks of investment in Biotechnology Companies

Some of the risks inherent in the development of a pharmaceutical
product to a marketable stage include the uncertainty of patent
protection and proprietary rights, whether patent applications and
issued patents will offer adequate protection to enable product
development, the obtaining of the necessary drug regulatory
authority approvals and difficulties caused by the rapid advancements
in technology. Also, a particular compound may fail the clinical
development process through lack of efficacy or safety. Companies
such as Metabolic are dependent on the success of their research
projects and on the ability to attract funding to support these
activities. Investment in research and development projects

cannot be assessed on the same fundamentals as trading and
manufacturing enterprises. Thus investment in these areas must

be regarded as speculative.

This Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements regarding
the potential of the Company’s projects and the development and
therapeutic potential of the Company’s research and development.
Any statement describing a goal, expectation, intention or belief

of the Company is a forward-looking statement and should be
considered an at-risk statement. Such statements are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties, particularly those inherent in the process

of discovering, developing and commercialising pharmaceutical
compounds that are safe and effective for use as human therapeutics
and the financing of such activities. There is no guarantee that the
Company's research and development projects will be successful or
receive regulatory approvals or prove to be commercially successful in
the future, Actual results of further research could differ from those
projected or detailed in this report. As a result, you are cautioned not
to rely on forward-looking statements.

Auditor’s Independence and Non-Audit Services

The directors received the following declaration from the auditor
of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited.

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Metabolic
Pharmaceuticals Limited

In relation to the audit of the financial report of Metabolic
Pharmaceuticals Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2005, to

the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions
of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001

or any applicable code of professicnal conduct.

Eon/ex Ty

Ernst & Young

AW PN

Denis Thorn
Partner

Melbourne
25 August 2005

Non-Audit Services
During the period under review the amount received, or due and
receivable for non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor,

Ernst & Young were:

— preparation of the Company’s Income Tax Return A$2,000

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services

during the current period is compatible with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act. The nature
and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor

independence was not compromised.




Corporate Governance Statement

Introduction

The Board of Metabolic is responsible for the corporate governance
of the Company and guides and monitors the business and affairs
of the Company on behalf of its shareholders.

This statement describes Metabelic’s corporate governance
framework, which predominantly reflects the 10 Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and 28 Best Practice Recommendations

established by the ASX Corporate Governance Council in March 2003,

Metabolic's compliance with these Principles and Recommendations
can be summarised as follows:

Metabolic carried out a comprehensive review of its corporate
governance policies and practices to determine to what extent

the Company had followed the above mentioned Principles of
Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations.
This review revealed that Metabolic was compliant with 26 of the
28 Best Practice Recommendations for the entire period under
review. Due to the size and nature of its operations, Metabolic

has determined that in a few instances the Company is best served
by policies that vary from these Best Practice Recommendations.
Any departures from the Best Practice Recommendations are
discussed befow, together with supplementary comments

on key Principles of Good Corporate Governance.

Structure the Board to add Value

Principles Metabolic's
(Recommendations) Compliance The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position of
Director held by each Director in office at the date of this report
1. Lay solid foundations for v are included in the Directors' Report under the section headed
management and oversight Board of Directors. Directors of Metabalic are considered to be
2. Structure the Board to add value independent when they are independent of management and
(2.1 A majority of the Board should freeﬁfrom a.n:]/ bhusmess f)r otfhs: rf:l.atijonshlp;thfF c;)uld matterlally
be independent Directors) Departure interfere with the exercise of their inaependent judgement.
(2.4 The Board should establish A Majority of the Board should be Independent Directors
a Nomination Committee) Departure (Recommendation 2.1}
3. Promote ethical and responsible decision-making Ve In the context of Director independence, to be considered
4. Safeguard integrity in financial reporting v lndep&.zndent, a Non-ExeFutlve Dlrfector may not have a direct
. . v or indirect material relationship with the Company. The Board
5. Make timely and balanced disclosure has determined that a material relationship is one which impairs
6. Respect the rights of shareholders v or inhibits, or has the potential to impair or inhibit, a Director’s
7. Recognise and manage risk v ?xercxse of judgement on behalf of the Company and
its shareholders.
8. Encourage enhanced performance v
fai ibl v The table below sets out the name, position, independance
9. Remunerate fairly and responsibly and tenure of each Director who served on the Board during
10. Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders v the period under review:
Name Position Independence Term in Office
Dr Arthur Emmett Chairman -~ Non-Executive Director independent 7 years
Dr Roland Scollay CEO / Managing Director ~ Executive Director Non-independent 3 years
Dr Chris Belyea Chief Scientific Officer — Executive Director Non-independent 7 years
Dr Evert Vos Medical Director ~ Non-Executive Director Non-independent 7 years
Mr Patrick Sutch Non-Executive Director Independent 1 year
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At the date of this report the Board consists of five directors, only two
of which are deemed independent, namely the Chairman, Dr Arthur

Emmett and Mr Patrick Sutch. The Board is actively seeking additional
Board Members to move towards a majority of independent directors.

The Board has adopted procedures to allow Directors, in the
furtherance of their duties, to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

The Board should Establish a Nomination Committee
(Recommendation 2.4}

As Metabolic has a relatively small Board, a formal Nomination
Committee has not been established as no real efficiencies would
be gained from the existence of such a committee.

To ensure the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities,

it has guidelines for the nomination and selection of Directors and for
the operation of the Board. The charter of the Nomination Committee
has been incorporated into the Board Charter and as such the

Board considers all matters that would be relevant for a Nomination
Committee, including a regular assessment of the size, composition
and skill mix of the Board.

Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting

The Board should Establish an Audit Committee
{Recommendation 4.2)

The Audit Committee operates under a charter approved by the
Board. It is the Board's responsibility to ensure that an effective control
framework exists within the entity. This includes ensuring that there
are internal controls to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency
of significant business processes, including the safeguarding of assets,
the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financial information as well as non-financial considerations.

The Board has delegated the responsibility for the establishment and
maintenance of a framework of internal control and ethical standards
for the management of the Company to the Audit Committee, The
Audit Committee also provides the Board with additional assurance
regarding the reliability of financial information for inclusion in the

financial statements.
The Audit Committee is responsible for nomination of the external

auditor and reviewing the adequacy of the scope and guality of the
annual statutory audit and half year statutory review.

Structure of the Audit Committee
(Recommendation 4.3)
Members of the Audit Committee during the period under review
included Mr Sutch (Chairperson), Dr Emmett and Dr Scollay. Metabolic
was fully compliant with the membership requirements outlined in ASX
Listing Rule12.7 for companies included in the ASX All Ordinaries Index
until 1 February 2005, as follows:
¢ only Non-Executive Directors;
* amaijority of independent Directors;
* anindependent chairperson, who is not chairperson

of the Board; and

* atleast three members.

Cn 1 February 2005, Dr Scollay was appointed as CEQ / Managing
Director, thus changing the composition of the Audit Committee to two
Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. From 1 February
2005 to 30 June 2005, Metabolic was compliant with the transitional
requirements of Listing Rule 12.7 which permitted Audit Committees

to have a majority of Non-Executive Directors. These transitional
arrangements expired on 30 June 2005. The Board is cognisant of the
need, as from 1 July 2005, to appoint a further Non-Executive Director

to serve on the Audit Committee and is actively moving towards this goal.

Details of the names and qualifications of the members of the

Audit Committee are included in the Board of Directors section

in this Directors’ Report.

The partner of the Company’s external auditor is invited to attend Audit
Committee meetings as required. For details of the number of meetings
of the Audit Committee held during the year and the attendees at those
meetings, refer to the Directors’ Meetings section in this Directors’ Report.

Respect the Rights of Shareholders
Metabolic is committed to providing shareholders with access to
relevant information to make an informed assessment of the Company’s
operations, risk profile, business strategies and future prospects.
Metabolic communicates regularly with its shareholders, within the
parameters of its Continuous Disclosure Policy and Communications
Policy, using the following:
* quarterly Investor Update distributed to all shareholders;
¢ the Annual Report which is distributed to all shareholders

who choose to receive it;
¢ the half yearly report provided to the ASX;
* website disclosure of all ASX announcements,

Media Releases and Board Policies; and
¢ the Annual General Meeting and other meetings so called

to obtain approval for Board actions as appropriate.




In June 2005, Metabolic initiated a campaign to encourage shareholders
1o elect to receive communications electronically. This initiative serves the
best interests of shareholders by facilitating the delivery of the Annual
Report, Notice of Meeting and other shareholder communications by
electronic means, thus reducing costs and protecting the environment.

Encourage Enhanced Performance

Disclose the Process for Performance Evaluation of the Board,
its Committees and individual Directors and Executives
(Recommendation 8.1)

Evaluating Board performance and the performance of key Executives
is a fundamental element of the Board's menitoring role, especially
with regard to the long-term growth of the Company and shareholder
wealth. Details relating to the policy for performance evaluation

and the amount of remuneration (menetary and non-monetary)

paid to each Director and Specified Executives are set outin the
Remuneration Report section of this Directors’ Report.

Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

It is the Company’s objective to provide maximum shareholder
benefit from the retention of high quality Directors and Executives
by remunerating fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant
market conditions.

it is important to recognise that the corporate performance of
Biotechnology companies can not be measured using the same
fundamentals commonly used in other industries. Given the inherent
high-risk nature of the Biotechnology ndustry, the direct correlation
of Executive rewards and key financial performance measures such
as Share Price, TSR, Net Earnings Per Share or Company Earnings,

in the view of the Board, is inappropriate.

Provide Disclosure in relation to the Company’s Remuneration Policies
{Recommendation 9.1)

A comprehensive description of Metabolic’s Remuneration policies
and procedures, including details of the costs and benefits of those
policies, and the link between remuneration and performance are
set out in the Remuneration Report.

The Board should Establish a Remuneration Committee
{Recommendation 9.2)

Remuneration of Directors and Executives is established by

the Remuneration Committee. This Committee consists of three
Directors with the majority being independent, including an
independent Chairman. The members of the Remuneration
Committee during the period under review were Dr Emmett
(Chairman), Dr Scollay and Mr Sutch.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for advising

the Board on remuneration policies and practices, and makes
specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other
terms of employment.

For details on the number of meetings of the Remuneration
Committee held during the year and the attendees at those
meetings, refer to the Board and Committee Meetings section

in this Directors’ Report.

Clearly distinguish the Structure of Non-Executive Directors’
Remuneration from that of Executives 1 9
(Recommendation 9.3)

Metabolic’s current structure for Non-Executive Director remuneration
is differentiated from Executive remuneration to the extent that
Non-Executive Directors do not receive cash bonus payments or leave
entitlements. Non-Executive Directors are not provided with any

post employment entitlements other than statutory superannuation

as applicable.

Historically, Non-Executive Directors have been issued Options, and it
is Metabolic's intention to continue granting Options to Non-Executive
Directors, subject to shareholder approval. The Board recognises

that this is a departure from best practice guidelines, however, it is
common practice to grant Options to Non-Executive Directors in the
Biotechnology Industry. The Board believes that this is an effective, low
cost means of providing ownership of the Company 10 Non-Executive
Directors, whilst conserving the Company's limited cash resources.

The following policies and statements can be downloaded

from the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s

website: www.metabolic.com.au:

» Annual Corporate Governance Statement;

» Full Board Charter, including policy on Nomination /
Appointment process;

s Code of Conduct;

e Code of Practice for Buying and Selling Shares;

s Audit Committee Charter,

« Continuous Disclosure Policy;

» Communications Policy;

¢ Risk Management Policy;

«  Performance Evaluation Process for Directors and Executives; and

e Remuneration Committee Charter.
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Remuneration Report

Introduction .

This report outlines remuneration arrangements in place for Directors
and Specified Executives of Metabolic.

It is important to recognise that the performance of Biotechnology D
companies can not be measured using the same fundamentals
utilised in other industries. Metabolic has not yet made a profit as
the Company is still in the process of nurturing grass roots research
through to commercialisation. The Company has had a number of
significant achievements in advancing its two main drugs to their
current stage of ciinical development. The key achievements and
milestones of Metabolic are a more meaningful performance
measure to correlate levels of remuneration.

The specific matters included in this Report are set out below under
separate headings, as follows:

the year ended 30 June 2005, including details of equity
instruments provided as remuneration.

Remuneration policy — Non-Executive Directors
This section describes the Company’s rationale in determining
Non-Executive Director payments and other relevant disclosures.

Remuneration policy - Executive Directors and

Specified Executives

This section describes the Company’s rationale in determining
salaries and incentives for Executive Directors and Specified
Executives, including explanations of the link between remuneration
and company performance, as well as details of Executive
employment contracts.

Details of Remuneration

For the year ended 30 June 2005, details of the remuneration
of each Metabolic Director and Specified Executive are set out

in the tables below.

s Details of remuneration - Directors (including Non-Executive
Directors and Specified Executives)
This section sets out clearly the dollar value of all components of
remuneration Directors or Specified Executives received during

Directors and Specified Executives were not granted any options
as part of their remuneration during the year under review.

Primary benefits Post Employment Equity Other Total
benefits
Directors Salary Cash Consulting Non- Superann-  Retire- Options Other
& Fees bonuses Fees monetary uation ment (i) &(iv)
(i) benefits (i} benefits

Dr Roland Scollay ! 2005 132,180 ~ - 2,109 10,321 - - 20,000 164,610
{CEQ / Managing Director and 2004 21,000 - - - - - - - 21,000
former Non-Executive Director)
Dr Chris Belyea ? 2005 250,008 - - 5.061 22,501 - - - 277,570
(Chief Scientific Officer and 2004 250,008 - - 4,217 22,501 - 29,751 - 306,477
former CEO / Managing Director)
Dr Arthur Emmett 2005 66,462 - - - 4,387 - - - 70,848
(Chairman & Non-Executive Chairman) 2004 50,000 - - - 4,500 - 10,287 - 64,787
Dr Evert Vos * 2005 32,000 - 51,069 - - - - - 83,069
(Non-Executive Director) 2004 32,000 - 52,009 - - ~ 29,751 ~ 113,760
Mr Patrick Sutch 2005 30,000 - - - - - - - 30,000
(Non-Executive Director) 2004 3,750 - - - - - - - 3,750
Total remuneration for Directors 2005 510,650 - 51,069 7,170 37,209 - - 20,000 626,098

2004 356,758 - 52,009 4,217 27,001 - 69,789 - 509,774
Aggregate of Directors’ Remuneration 370,258 - 89,509 - 28,216 - 99,540 - 587,523
disclosed in the 2004 Annual Report #




Primary benefits Post Employment Equity Other Total
benefits
Specified Executives Salary Cash Consulting Non- Superann-  Retire- Options Other
& Fees  bonuses Fees monetary uation ment (i) &(iv)
(i) benefits (i} benefits
Mr David Kenley* 2005 205,257 10,000 - 5,061 19,390 - - - 239,708
(Vice President ~ Corporate 2004 136,050 35,845 - 4,217 15,471 - 22,313 - 213,896
Development & Joint Company Secretary)
Ms Belinda Shave 2005 114,694 10,000 - 5,061 11,222 - 11,602 - 152,579
(Financial Cantroller/Company Secretary) 2004 107,165 4,000 - 4,217 10,005 - 4,210 - 129,597
Dr Caroline Herd 2005 161,772 10,000 - 5,061 15,459 - 12,848 - 205,140
(Vice President - Clinica! Development) 2004 112,445 10,000 - 4,217 11,020 - 10,577 - 148,259
Mr David Smith® 2005 150,000 5,000 - - 13,950 - - - 168,950
(Manufacturing Manager) 2004 127,885 - - - 11,510 - - - 139,395
Dr Mary Saleh 2005 101,411 2,000 - 5,061 9,307 - 957 - 118,736
(Vice Presidant - Research) 2004 78,579 - - 4217 7,162 - 5,949 - 96,207
Dr Andrea McCracken 2005 103,336 12,000 - 5,061 10,380 - 14,503 - 145,280
(Research Manager) 2004 83,885 10,000 - 4,217 8,450 - 5,095 - 111,647
Total remuneration 2005 836,470 49,000 - 25,305 79,708 - 39,910 - 11,030,393
for Specified Executives 2004 647,009 59,845 - 21,085 63,618 - 48,144 - 839,701
Aggregate of Specified Executives 435,239 49,845 - - 43,658 - 43,049 - 571,791
disclosed in the 2004 Annual Report 7

(i) Non-monetary Benefits

Notes:

1

@M

Dr Roland Scollay was appointed CEO / Managing Director on 1 February 2005.
Prior to this appointment, Or Scoflay had served on the Board as 3 Non-Executive
Director since November 2002. The amount disclosed for Salary & Fees for 2005
includes $17,500 in relation to Non-Executive Director’s Fees paid to Dr Scollay
from 1 July 2004 to 31 January 2005.

Dr Chris Belyea relinquished his role as CEQ / Managing Director effective

31 January 2005, to take up the position of Chief Scientific Officer

on 1 February 2005.

Dr Evert Vios was paid consultancy fees of $51,069 for additional services

for 2004-05.

These amounts represent the aggregate of Directors disclosed in the 2004
Annual Report. The Directors specified in this report are different to those
specified in the 2004 Annual Report.

Mr David Kenley ceased to be a Company Secretary of Metabolic on

23 December 2004 and resigned from Metabolic on 1 July 2005.

Mr David Smith commenced emplayment with Metabolic on 25 August 2003.
The amount disclosed for 2004 represents 10 months remuneration for the year
ended 30 June 2004,

These amounts represent the aggregate of Specified Executives disclosed in the
2004 Annual Report. The Executives specified in this report are different to those
specified in the 2004 Annual Report.

Bonuses
Individual performance reviews were conducted in September 2004. Cash

bonuses included in the remuneration of Specified Executives were granted in
November 2004, based on qualitative individual performance determined during

the formal review process.

()

i}

<

Non-monetary benefits consist solely of the value of car parking benefits.

fair Value of Options - current period

For the period under review, the fair value of equity based remuneration, disclosed

in the above tables, was determined using a binomial option-pricing model. This
model takes into account, as at grant date, the exercise price and expected life of the
option, the vesting criteria, the current price of the underlying share and its expected
volatility, expected dividends and the risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the
option. The equity based remuneration included in the tables above refate to options
issued pursuant to the Metabolic Employee Share Option Plan which have an expiry
date between 54 and 59 months with staggered vesting terms based on anniversary
periods. The option-pricing model values each of these vesting portions separately.
Accordingly, the amortised equity remuneration disclosed in the tables above

reflect the apportioned value of the options during the year ended 30 June 2005,
During the period under review, no amount has been included in the equity based
remuneration section for each Director or Mr David Kenfey as there were no options
granted to those individuals during this period and options previously granted had
all vested prior to the current period. Currently, the amortised fair values are not
recognised as an expense in the financial statements and no adjustments have been
made or will be made to reverse amounts previously disclosed in relation to options
that never vest or are not exercised fi.e. actual forfeitures).

Fair Value of Options - previous period

The fair value of the prior year equity based remunerstion, disclosed in the tables
above, was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The price-
modeled value of the options were amortised and disciosed on a straight-line basis
from the date of grant untif expiry. This mode! took into account, as at grant date.
the exerdise price, the expected life of the option, the vesting criteria, the current
price of the underlying share and its expected volstility, expected dividends and the
risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the option.
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For the period under review, the fair value of each option is estimated using a binomial option pricing model as indicated in note (iii)

on the previous page, with the following assumptions:

Options granted on

Binomial Option Pricing
11 December 2000

Model Variables

Options granted on

Options granted on

Options granted on
23 December 2003

14 December 2001 22 November 2002

Exercise Price ’ $0.80 $0.90 $0.90 $1.00
Risk-free interest rate 5.40% 5.33% 5.22% 5.56%
Volatility 35% 35% 35% 35%
Expiry Date 11 November 2005 14 November 2006 22 October 2007 23 November 2008
Dividend yield - - - -
Average Fair Value per option (cents) 7.8 18.0 16.0 26.0
Name Number and value of options Totat
for the year ended 30.06.05
Ms Belinda Shave Number of options - - - 120,000 120,000
Value for year ended 30.06.05 - - - $11,602 $11,602
Dr Caroline Herd Number of options - 250,000 150,000 - 400,000
Value for year ended 30.06.05 - $6,791 $6,057 - $12,848
Dr Mary Saleh Number of options 250,000 - - - 250,000
Value for year ended 30.06.05 $957 - - - $957
Dr Andrea McCracken  Number of cptions - - - 150,000 150,000
- $14,503  $14,503

Value for year ended 30.06.05 -

Remuneration Policy ~ Non-Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee requires the Board to determine

the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors based on independent
external advice with regard to market practice, relativities, and
director duties and accountability. The Company's remuneration
policy is designed to attract and retain competent and suitably
qualified Non-Executive Directors, to motivate these Non-Executive
Directors to achieve Metabolic's long term strategic objectives and

to create value for shareholders. Non-Executive Director remuneration
is commensurate with the responsibilities, time and risk involved

in carrying out their directorship.

Fee Pool

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined within an aggregate
directors’ fee pool limit, which is periodically approved by
shareholders. At the 2004 Annual General Meeting, shareholders

approved an increase in the maximum aggregate remuneration paid
to Non-Executive Directors by $100,000, from $200,000 to $300,000.

Total Non-Executive Directors’ fees paid during the year ended
30 June 2005, amounted to $150,350, representing 50% of the fee
poal approved by shareholders at the 2004 Annual General Meeting.

Consulting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for additional
services are not included in this aggregate pool of fees.

fFees

The allocation of Non-Executive Directors’ fees is reviewed regularly.
The Chairman is paid additional fees in recognition of the additional
responsibilities attaching to that role. No additional fees are paid to
Directors for their duties as members of the Audit or Remuneration
Committee. During the year ended 30 June 2005 the Company
held a total of 13 formal meetings, including Committee, Board
and Shareholder meetings.

According to the Director and Senior Executive Remuneration Report
published by Corporate Remuneration Advisors (May 2005), the average
total fixed remuneration for a Non-Executive Director and Chairman in
the Chemicals/Biotechnology/Pharmaceuticals industry sector is $78,000
and $79,000 respectively. This average is significantly higher than the
fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors of Metabolic.




Metabolic conducted a review of the remuneration paid to Non-
Executive Directors and Chairpersons in 2004 of nine ASX listed peer
companies'. This review also revealed that fees paid to Metabolic's
Non-Executive Directors and its Chairman are below industry average.

Non-Executive Directors are reimbursed for out of pocket expenses
incurred as a result of their directorship or any special duties.

Equity participation

The Board encourages Non-Executive Directors to own Company
shares. Subject to shareholder approval, Non-Executive Directors may
receive equity as part of their remuneration.

Given the risks and responsibilities of Non-Executive Directors in the
current environment, the cash component of the Non-Executive
Director’s fees is limited incentive. As Metabolic is still nurturing
research and development projects to commercialisation and
accordingly remains in an annual loss position, it is difficult to provide
sufficient incentives without using an equity based plan. Whilst the
Board acknowledges best practice for the granting of options to Non-
Executive Directors, it has granted options to Non-Executive Directors
as this is an effective, low cost means of providing ownership of the
Company, whilst conserving the Company’s limited cash resources. it
is common practice to grant options to Non-Executive Directors in the

Biotechnology Industry.

No options have been granted to Non-Executive Directors during
the year ended 30 June 2005.

Retiring Allowance

No retiring allowances are paid to Non-Executive Directors.

Superannuation

Metabolic pays the statutory superannuation guarantee charge
in relation to eligible Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration Policy - Executive Directors and

Specified Executives

Metabolic's overall group remuneration policy is set by the Board's
Remuneration Committee. The policy is reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure it remains contemporary and competitive.

For the Executive Directors and Senicr Executives the policy is
intended to be consistent with the ASX Corporate Governance

W:umu

Council’s Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice
Recommendations (Principle 9 Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly).
Broadly, this policy is intended to ensure:

for each role, that the balance between fixed and variable
(performance) components is appropriate having regard
to both internal and external factors;

¢ that the set individual objectives will result in sustainable
beneficial outcomes;

» that all performance remuneration components are appropriately
linked to measurable personal, business unit or company
performance; and

» that total compensation (that is, the sum of fixed and
variable components) for each Executive is fair, reasonable
and market competitive.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for evaluating the
performance of the Chief Executive Officer, who in turn evaluates
the performance of all other Executives and makes recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee. The evaluation process is intended
to assess the Company's business performance, whether long-term
strategic objectives are being achieved and the achievement of
individual performance objectives.

The relationship between Metabolic’s remuneration policy and the
Company's performance is set out in the section of this report titled

Company Performance.

Generally, there are three components of Executive remuneration
provided, as follows:

1. fixed annual remuneration comprising salary and benefits?,
including superannuation; and

2. short-term performance incentive; and
3. medium and long-term incentive, generally through participation

in Metabolic’s Employee Share Option Plan ("MESOP”).

The combination of these three components comprises an Executive’s

total remuneration.

' Companies were selected based on industry sector, clinical development and market capitafisation.

* The only non-monetary benefit provided to Executives is car parking.
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Fixed Annua!l Remuneration

Executives are offered a market competitive base salary. Base
salary is reviewed on a regular basis against market data for
comparable positions. :

Adjustments to base salary are made based on promotion or
significant role responsibility changes, pay relativities to market
and relative performance in the role.

Short-Term Incentives

Short-term incentives in the form of cash bonuses are paid to
selected Executives based upon individual performance and
achievement of personal and corporate objectives. For example:

s satisfactory completion and design of clinical trials;

» securing Government and public funding through grants
and share placements; and

* maintenance of high ethical standards.

Performance objectives and Key Result Areas are agreed with each
Executive at the beginning of the period and performance is measured
against indicators to determine the value of cash bonuses paid. The
annual bonus pool is determined by a nominated percentage of the
annual budget for salaries and is apportioned based on the outcomes
of each individual performance evaluation conducted by the CEC /

Managing Director.

Medium and Long-Term Incentives

Metabolic’'s medium and long-term Executive incentive policy aims
to focus on corporate performance and retention of key Executives.

Historically, Executives have received option allocations under the
Metabolic Employee Share Option Plan (“MESOP") which have an
expiry date between 54 and 59 months from the grant date, and
exercisable beginning the first anniversary of the date of grant,
subject to continued employment.

Due 1o the speculative nature of the industry, it is not appropriate to
grant the exercise of options subject to the satisfaction of traditional
performance conditions, such as Total Shareholder Return (TSR) or
share price targets. The options are issued for nominal consideration,
and are granted at the discretion of the Board. The vesting condition
attaching to these options is continued service. These options cannot
be transferred and will not be quoted on the ASX.

Metabolic’s medium and long-term incentive practices for Executives
have been reviewed in detail during the current period.

The Board recognises that certain remuneration policies may need to
be adjusted from time to time in order to ensure the appropriate mix
between performance based and non-performance based elements
and between long and short-term goals and rewards, depending upon
the challenges facing the business and its objectives at any given

point in its development.

Board Performance

Evaluating Board performance is an important element of the Board's
monitoring role, especially with regard to the long-term growth of the
Company and shareholder wealth. The Board conducts a comprehensive
annual self-evaluation to determine whether it and its committees are
functioning effectively. Metabolic has five Directors, and accordingly the
costs associated with engaging an external consultant is not seen to be
beneficial to the Company.

This financial year, each Director was required to complete a detailed
questionnaire including roles and responsibilities, business strategy, senior
management and reporting and compliance systems. The assessment
dealt with individual performance as well as the collective performance
of the Board and its committees, including consideration of the Board's
overall contribution to Metabolic and identifying areas in which the Board
could improve.

The Board intends to employ the same evaluation process in future years.

Company Performance

The statutory requirements for this section of the Remuneration Report
were broadened this year to include a discussion of the relationship
between remuneration policy and the Company's performance,
indluding details of Company performance for the last four years. Given
the inherent high-risk nature of the Biotechnology Industry, the direct
correlation of Executive rewards and key financial performance measures
such as Share Price, TSR, Net Earnings Per Share or Company Earnings,
in the view of the Board, are inappropriate.

At this stage of Metabolic’s drug and candidate pipeline, Metabolic’s
annual earnings are predominantly impacted by research and
development expenditure, and costs associated with clinical trials.
Accordingly, no dividends have been deciared, nor has there been a
return of capital since listing. Metabolic’s share price has been driven
by speculation in anticipation of resuits from clinical trials and is not
necessarily indicative of future share price performance.




Metabolic has designed its remuneration policies to ensure significant
linkage between rewards and specific achievements that improve
shareholder wealth, including the following key measures:

* completion of clinical trials on time;
» qgualitative individual performance;

¢ the addition of other pre-clinical or clinical stage drug candidates
to continue building the pipeling;

e ensuring sufficient capital resources (through securing
government grants and capital raisings); and

» further collaboration and partnerships.

The Board continues to review remuneration policy to ensure
competitive and appropriate rewards for Executive performance,
with transparent alignment to shareholder and employee interests.

Employment Contracts

Dr Roland Scollay ~ CEO / Managing Director

Dr Scollay served on the Metabolic Board as a Non-Executive Director
since November 2002, and commenced an ongoing contract as

CEO / Managing Director on 1 February 2005. A signing on bonus
of $20,000 in addition to salary was paid to Dr Scollay upon
commencement of his contract. Dr Scollay’s contract will be reviewed
annually in conjunction with a salary review. Under the terms of the
present contract:

*  Dr Scollay may resign from his position and thus terminate his
contract by giving six months written notice;

e Metabolic may terminate Dr Scollay’s contract by providing
12 months’ written notice or provide payment in lieu of all or
part of the notice pericd (based on the fixed component of
remuneration). On notice of termination by the Company, any
long-term incentive options that have vested, or will vest during
the notice period will be released. Long-term incentive options
that are not vested will be forfeited; and

« Metabolic may terminate the contract at any time without
notice in circumstances that warrant summary dismissal. Where
termination with cause occurs, Dr Scollay is only entitled to that
porticn of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date

of termination.

Performance based bonuses of up to 20% of salary will be paid
annually against goals agreed between Dr Scollay and the Board.
A one-off special bonus will be paid upon signing of a deal with
a large pharmaceutical company, details and amount to be
determined by the Board.

As a long-term incentive, Dr Scollay will be granted equity
remuneration which will be subject to shareholder approval
at the Company's next Annual General Meeting.

Other Director and Specified Executive contracts 2 5

All other Directors and Specified Executives are employed under
standard ongoing employment contracts which do not specify
a fixed term, performance conditions or termination benefits.

Other Information

Loans to Directors and Executives

No loans have been made to Directors of Metabolic or to any of
the Specified Executives, including their personally-related entities.

Company Secretary

Details of the qualifications and experience of the Company Secretary
are set out in the Board of Directors section in the Directors’ Report.

This Directors’ Report, incorporating the Corporate Governance
Statement and Remuneration Report, has been signed in accordance
with a Resolution of the Directors made on 25 August 2005.

B [ty

Roland Scollay
Managing Director

Arthur Emmett
Chairman

Melbourne
25 August 2005
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION at 30 June 2005

Note 30 June 2005
8

C oW

Current Assets

Cash assets 3a) 17,077,358

Receivables 3y 74,867

Otheér

3(0) 205,015

36 Jurie 2004 "
$

17,346,984
125,081 v
210,163 "

Total Current Assets 17,357,240

17,682,228

Non-Current Assets .

Property, plant and'equipm_ent ‘

“+ 500,000

4 828,995

Other financial assets ~ investment in shares

o immoss

Total Non-Curfent Assets-

Total Assets

Current Liabilities ©

Payables

18,686,235

B 1212230

Provisions 6V F . 157,546

41,369,776

Total Current Liabilities .-

Non-Current Liabiliti

a7,

Provisions.

34,719

Total Non{urréh’t Liébl!!tleS'__"

1,404,495

Total Liabilities -

17,281,740

Net Assets

Equity

Contributed equity . 8 ; L 61,777,978
' o) - 383,478

Reserves

‘ 9'(‘b)',.f,"';"f : (44,879,716) -

(34,115,128)" e

Accumulated loss'_e‘sv‘ s

17,281,740

Total Equity

1 6,684,5‘1'6




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE vyear ended 30 June 2005

Note. 30June 2005 30-June 2004:
. - $
Réventig from ordinary a‘di\'/ities:_ B 2'(3')':"' o 792,288 2818676
Research and development expenses TR 2(b) (8,958,840) (10,433,074)
Ovrhead experises 2b) (2.598,037) (1,929,128)
Loss frori ordinary activities before income tax expense (10,764,589) (8,543,526) » .

Incomie tax expense relating to ordinary activities .:

Loss from ordinary activities after related incor e

L ojeases) (552

(9,543,526)

Extraordinary items after related ihcqrrwe:tak expen -
Net loss (10,764,589) -
Net loss attributabl‘e‘fq:member‘_s of Me._tabol_i'vc\Pha‘rfmaéeu't‘icalvs‘ Limited (10,764,589)

Net increase in‘option’pre

. (479,007)

Capital raising expenses.

Total revenues expenses and valuatron adJustm "ts attrrbutab

to members of the enmy and recognrs d di

Total changes in equrty other than those resultrng

" (11,243,596)

(479,007

(9,503,673)

from transactions Wl‘th owners as owners

2 (4.68)

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) =
(4.68)

Diluted earnrngs per share (cents per share)

METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LiMITED { ANKUAL REPBRY 2008

RO

9




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS year ended 30 June 2005

Cash Flows from Operatmg Amvmes-.
Payments to suppliers and employees

GST refund received

Interest récéived

Net opérating cash flows

Cash Flows from Investmg Actlwtles s

Payments for plant and eqmpment

Investment in share :

Net investing cash ﬂows . .

Cash Flows from .Fi‘r'.léﬁc'ing Ac'ti\}if‘ies":.' B o
Proceeds from share and option issues v
Net financing cash flows o

Net mcrease/(decrease) in cash held

Cash at the begmnmg of the fmanmal year

Cash at the end of the fmancnal year 2

Note

13(b)

SEREREETCI P
e

B

30 June 2005
$

{12,031,321)
536,329
725,729

116 773

30 Jurie 2004

$

691,033
2,027,429

(10 652 490) B

(8,876,850) ' .

(478,950) -
(500,000)

(978,950)

11,361,813

11,361,813

(269,627)

17,346,985

17,077,357




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

1. Stateément of Significant Accotiniting Policies 1.6 Goodsand Services Tax (GST)

1.1 Basis of Accountirig Revenues, expenses and assets are recoghised net of GST except

. »_where the GST ificurred on a purchase of goods and servrces
DS not recovera ble from the taxation authorrty in wh ’
CGST | rs recognrsed as part of the cost of acqursrtron of t#

or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

The financial report is a general- purpose financial report whrch has

been prepared in accordance with the 1 requrremen s of the, Corporatrons :
Act 2001 including applrcable Accountrng Standards Other mandatory '
professional reporting requrrements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus

Views) have also been complied with. The accounting polrcres adopted . recervables and payables are stated with the amount of \GS
are consistent with those of the previous year, (if any) included. :
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the historical The net amount of GST recoverable-from, o payable to, the taxatron
cost conventi
on. i authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement__

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared onagoing  of Financial Position. Cash flows are included in the Statemen f Cash o
concern basis. The Companys operations are SUbJECt to major nsks due Flows on a gross basrs (i.e. rncludrng GST) and the GST comp '
primarily to the nature of research, development and commercralrsatlon

10 be undertaken. The risk factors set out may materrally rmpact the S
financial performance and posrtron of the Company ' :

of |ts prorects »r
and that the subsequent commercralrsatron of he developed products ‘

consequences, |f any, of the rnabrlrty of the Company to obtarn adequate
funding nor of the effects of unsuccessful research developmentand . . -
commercialisation of the Companys prolects ' PR AR

1.2 lnvestments . : .
Investments in lrsted companles are. held at. the lower of cost and market '
value and as such any unrealrsed garns are: not re" gnrs d in the statement
of flnanclal performance : e

1.3 Contrrbuted 'qurty

of the share proceeds recerved'

from the government

1.4 Recoverable Amounts of Non Current Asse ) .
‘1 10 Researchrand Development

All non-current assets are revrewed at least annually to determrne whether ;
' Research and development costs are expensed as. rncurred except

their carrying amounts requrre wrlte down to recoverabl amount ln
considering the lrkely recoverable amount of non- current assets future where future benef[ts are expected, beyond any reasonable d bt
cash flows have not been dlscounted to thelr net present values fo exceed those costs Where research and development cost:
S L e : : deferred such costs are amortrsed over future periods on a basrs

related to expected future beneflts Unamort|sed €osts are rey

1.5 Income Tax L i
The financial statements apply th, rrncrples of tax effect accountlng The

B useful economic Irves as follows

“Lifer

: Offlce equrpment k 3-~10years

nrsed as a future o

estimated carry forward tax losses has not been rec_ 2
not CQUS'dEVEd» Laboratory plant and equipment S years

income tax beriefit asset as’ realrsatron of such benetrt
virtually certain. A

Stralghk lin
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

1.12 Emipléyee Benefits o
Provision is made for employee benefits accumulaied asa. )
result of employees rendering services up to the repomng date ]
These benefits mclude annual leave and long, servrce Ieave

Liabilities arising in respect of employee bene )
settled within twelve months of the reportlng date _such : 5 annual
léave, are measured at their, nomlnal amounts based n. remuneratlon
rates which are expected to be pald when the liabili settled. All
other employee benefit liabilities are ‘measured at the present value

of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of serwces
provided by employees up to the reporting date. ln determrnrng the
present vaiue of future cash outflows, the market yreld as at the '-
reporting date on national government bonds which’ have terms

to maturity approxlmatmg the terms of the related Irabrllty' are used

1.13 Fmancral lnstrume _.ts Incl de_

Ordinary share capital bears no ‘special terms or con d
income or caprtal entltlements of the shareholder

of the ﬂnancral year

Exchange differences relatrng to monetary rtems are mclude
in the statement of frnancral performance ’ A

' Dlluted EFS

‘ 1 17 Comparatlves
s Where necessary, comparatrves have been reclassrfred and e
By for consrstency wrth current year drsclosures :

1. 16 Earnrngs Per Share
Basic EPS | is calculated as net profit attributable to members;: adjusted to .
exclude costs of servrcrng equity (other than dividends), drvrded by_the
weight d ‘verage number of ordrnary shares

calculated as net profrt attrlbutable to member
adJusted for '

. costs of servrcmg equity (other than dividends);

LR the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated. wrth

drlutrve potential ordinary shares that have been recognlsed
as expenses and :
. other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses durlng

. the perlod that would result from the dilution of potentral
ordlnary shares drvrded by the welghted average numb' of

'earnrngs per share calculation.




30 june 2004- ¢ -

30 June 2005
s $
Revenue and Expenses
(ay Operating loss from ordlnary actlvmes is aﬁer credmng the followmg revenues:, '
Revenues from ordlnary operatlng ac‘nv .'
Interest income from unrelated partles s 675,515 790,411
Grants recéived - 116,773 2,027,429
Sundry income » - 836 . -
o 792,288 2,818,676
(b)  Operating loss from ordinary activities is after ,charglng_ the following expenses:
Research and development expense S
, Salaries and oncosts DT .. . : 1,323,961 1,171,018,
AOD9604 Obesity | Project - .. Lo ool 4683932 6,976,375
ACV1 Neuropathlc Paln Prolect ‘ el e e 2,289,323 ‘ 1847 613
vOtherR&Dactl 661,624 '
. 8,958,840
Ovethead expens : o
Salaries, and oncosts 1,102,108
.Operatmg leases c 137,460 -
Deprediation - offlce equment 15,624
Depreciation - laboratory equment 216,998
Other admlnlstratlon expenses - 1,125,847
R 72,598,037
o 11,556,877
Current Assets * . '
(a) RN o
127 358,1_ -
-16,950,000. -

,‘-17_,07,7,358.." e

b) Recexvables )
.74,867

Interest recelvable
(c) Other Assets v
Prepayments : - 119,254
Security deposns o 1;,141_
Other B S 73,580
e 205,015 .
Proper‘t'y,_Pvlanv and Equipment .
Office Equipmen
iy Cost: A
Opemng balance ' 209 556 i
Addmons 76, 257
a 285,813
(i) .
(104,530)
Depreaatlon for the ye (45,622)
Closing balance ' (150,152)
135,661

Net Book Value Ofﬁce Eqmpment

it e i e

METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

30 June 2005 30 june 2004
S8 $

Property, Plant and Equrpment (contrnued)

Laboratory, Plant & Equrpment PP

()  Cost : R g
Opening balance. - - " 1,064,478 303,288 1
Additions 46553 761,190 -
Closing balance 1,111,031 1,064,478

(i)  Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance (200,698) (77,027 -
Depreciation for the year (216,999) o {123671) d e
Closrng balance (417,697) (200,698) . .-

Net Book Value Laboratory, Plant and Equrpment 693,334 863,7_8'0,; :

Net Book Value - Property, Plant and Equrpment 828,995.
Other Fmancral Assets
Investment.ifi shares L .
Shares at lower of cost and recoverable value i ) : 500,000
(i Thesum of 5500 DOO was pard in December 2004 by way of subscrlptlon monres for 1, 250 000 shares at v
$0.40 per share in the initial public offering of Neuren Pharmaceutrcals Limited (ASX Code NEL) which were
subsequently |ssued on 28 January 2005. The market value of these shares at 30 June 2005 was 3562 500
Payables (Current)
Creditors (unsecured) 1,195,854 1,867,412'
Payable to Diréctors, - 16,376 i
Total payables: 1,212,230 . 1,867,412
157,546
(b) - Non Current,- L e
Long Serwce Leave L 34,7193
Total Provrsrons ’ 192,265
Contrlbuted Equrty
Contnbuted equlty at begrnnrng of year 50,416,166 30,550, 838
11,817,818 19,926, 980

Shares issued durrng the year 13(d) R SN _ . 'f_ ‘ _ .

Transaction costs -~ " % ¢ R ) o {479,007) (61, 652)

Monies held in trust for |ssue of shares oK 23,002 _ . -7
' 61,777,978 50,416,166

Contributed equrty at end of yea' :

N Number of Shares _
+ 227,989,605 - 170,572, 544
16393446 - 11,525,
2914102, % - ' 45,891,228

‘

247,297,153 ¢ . 227,089,605

Movement in contnbuted equrty for U
On issue at start R :
Issued durlng the year ‘13(d)

‘and ttend and vote at all general meetlngs of the Company, 10 receive le|d‘
ompany to partmpate equally inthe. drstnbutlon of the assets (both capital and
.»Each Ordinary Share entrtles the holder 1o oné vote, either in person or by proxy, SR

Ordrnary Shares attract the rlght to rec_
as declared and, in the event of wmdlng up, th

surplus), subject to any amounts unpard on hat
at a meeting of the Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

10.

1.

30 June 2004
$:

30 June: 2005
$
Reserves and Accumulated Losses
(a) Optlon Premlum Reserve ' _
Balance at beglnnlng_‘of pefiod "~ 383,478
Issue of options during the period -
383,478

383478,

Balance at end of period (i)

(b) Accumulatecl Losses

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year (34,115,127)

(10,764,589)

(24,571,602)

(9,543,525) "~

Net loss

Retained profits/(losses) at the end of the fmancral year (44,879,716)

(34,115,127)

@) Represents the nominal consideration pald lor subscriber of employee options
and the' pnce modelled value of options issted in lleu of payment for serylces

Income Tax ;

The dlf'ference between lncome tax expense provi ed in the manoal statements
and the pnma faCle lncome tax expense reconciled as follows '

" (10,764,589) .

(9,543,526)

Loss from ordlnary actlvmes before |ncome !

(2,863,08)

(562, sool
15,217
753

3,409,588,

Prima facie tax calculated at 30% (2004 30°/ ) (3,229,377)
Tax effect of permanent differences:

- Research and development (637,500)
- Listing expenses - 12,579
- Entertalnment expenses o 860
Tax losses not brought to account f- : 3,853,438

15004086, & - 117,2953

' 'the Compan contlnues to comply with the condltlons for deductlblllty

|mposed by law and:: £ R o o

(i  there are no changes in taxatlon leglslatlon adversely affectlng
the Company in reallsmg the beneﬂt S

The estlmated tax effect of the balance of tlmlng dlfferences hot brought to account

at period end are a future |ncome tax beneflt of $63 680 (2004 $24, 169) and provrs;on

for deferred lncome tax of $44 590 (2004 $39 595) :

Employee Beneflts Recognlsed

157,546

34,719;

over the in

of staff of the Company_ The ¢ B _
established by the dlrectors ‘of Metabollc Pharmaceu i _als lelted although

retalns the flnal dlscretlon on the lssue of the options. The. optidns are issue
e date of grant The optlons cannot b

192,265 .

etabolic Employee Share Optlon Planvwhere the Company may, at the discretion
re of Metabollc Pharmaceutlcals lelted to dlrectors executives and membe

s' iss 'ed for omlnalconSlderatlon are granted in accordance with performance guidelines - :

the management of Metabolic Pharmaceutlcals lelted;_ S

d for varying terms ranging from 54 to 59 months and are

e transferred and will not be quoted on the o




11. Employee Benefits Recognised (continued)
Information with respect to the number of Sptions granted Urider the Metabolic Emiployes Share Option Plan i§ as follows:

(a) Employee Optiong 30 June 2005
(i) Employee Optlons over Ordmary Shares (No of optlons)

Date of Isste 23/12/03  23/07/03° 1740103 2,2_/‘13/0"2 1412/01 25005001 1112/00 10/03/00 10/0300  Total
ASX Code (unhsted opt|ons) MBPAQ MBPAS MBPAQ MBPAQ MBPAQ MBPAQ MBPAQ MBPAO MBPAM
On issue at beglnnmg of the year 580,000 207,692 280,000 150,000 250,000 80,000 250,000 450,000 404,312 2,652,004
Issued during the year - = = u - = = - - =
Exercised during the year (i) (100) = (16,000} « (100} - - (450,000) (404,312) (870,512)
Cancelled during the period - = ~ - = - - - - -
Outstanding at balancé
date and exercisable 579,900 207,692 264,000 150,000 249,900 80,000 250,000 - - 1,781,492
Issued subsequent to balance date = - = = = - = = - .‘ -
Exercised subséquent to balance date = _(207,692)> - - = - -~ - - {207,692)
Cancelled subsequent to balance date = = (114,000) = - - = = - (114,000
Outstanding at date of Difectors’ ’ T S
Report and exercisable 579,900 - 150,000 150,000 249,900 80,000 250,000 s - 1459800 37
Number of recipients 6 1 4 2 1 2 S 5 6 .
Exercise price $1.00 55¢ 90¢ 90¢ 90¢ 80¢ 80¢ 80¢  43.33¢
Exercise period: _Fr’om 2_3/12/03 23ﬁ[03 17/01/03  22/11/02  14/12/01  25/05/01 11/12/00  10/03/00 10/03/00 .
To 23/11/08 31/7/05  17/12/07 2210007 14/11/06  25/04/06  11/11/05 10/09/04 10/09/04
Expiration date 73711408 31/7/05  1712/07 22110007 14/11/06  25/04/06 11/11/05 10/09/04  10/09/04
The following proportions ) '
vest from the datés showri: 10% 10/3/00  10/3/00
40% 10/3/01 10/3/01
60% 10/3/02 10/3/02
80% 10/3/03 10/3/03
100% 10/9/04 10/3/04 = -
20% .24/12/04 18/1/04 © 2311/03. 15/12/02 26/5/02  12/12/01
40% 23/12/05 18/1/05 . 23/11/04  15/12/03 26/5/03  12/12/02
70% 24/12/06 18/1/06 23/11/05  15/12/04 26/5/04 12/12/03
100% - 24/12/07 23/7/03 18/1/07 - 23/1 1/06 . 15/12/05 26/5/05 12/112/04
(ii) Information relating to opt:ons exercised by employees durmg the year.ended 30 June 2005
Number of shares issued :
Issue date: 05/07/04 -~ = - - - - = 15,000 -
14/07/04 -~ - - - - = 30,000 -
27/07/04 e - 16,000 = = = = - 13,928
16/08/04 = - - - - - - 20,000 40,384
02/09/04 - - = = = - —~ 25,000 107,692
10/09/04 - - - = — - - 360,000 242,308
09/06/05 100 -~ - = 100 - - = -
Exercise Price paid by Employees
Issue date: 05/07/04 - - - - - = = 12,000 -
14/07/04 - - ~ - = = = 24,000 -
27/07/04 - - 14,400 - - - - - 6,035
16/08/04 - - - - - - - 16,000 17,498
02/09/04 - - - - - = 20000 46663 = .
10/09/04 - - - - - ~ 288,000 104,992 .':‘ :“5
09/06/05 100 = - 90 = = - -
Fair value of shares issued o ‘ '
Issue date: 05/07/04 - - .- - - - + 24,750 -
14/07/04 - - o= - - - - 33,300 -
27/07/04 . - - 20,320 - - - - - 17,689 .
16/08/04 - - - - - - -~ 25200 50,834,
02/09/04 - - - - - - = 34,000 146,461
10/09/04 - = - - - - -~ 496,800 334,385
09/06/05 69 - - - 69 - - - -

Fair value of sharés issued during the reporting period is estimated to be the ma

Exchange as at close of tradmg on the respectlve lssue dates

i i e

rket price of shares of Metabolic PHarmaceuticals Limited on the Australian Stock

et et £ e S = e

METAROLID .'r;!!iaBMQ{iE'UT:‘{:ALS Ll ﬂ"'“:H i id‘ n!ﬁ.g RES‘GR’ '“1.5)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

11. Employee Benefits Récognised (continuead)

(a) Employée Optiohs 30 June 2004
(i)  Employee Optionis over Ordinaty Sharés (No, of options)

‘ iO/os, 0

30

© 28/10/98 ©  Total

Date of issue 23/12/03  23/07/03 170103 22/11/02 14/12/01: ’25/0‘5/0i‘- 11‘/,12'/0‘0'" (
ASX Cade (untisted options) MBPAQ  MBPAS' MBPAQ MBPAQ MEPAQ MBPAQ MBPAG O MBPAM. MBPAK:
On issue at beginhirig of the year = 207,692 280,000 250,000 250,000 180,000 250,000 450,000 433,466 357,692 2,658,850
Issued during the year 580,000 = = - = = - = - - 580,000
Exercised during the-year (i} - = = - = (40,000) = - (21,077 (92,308) (153,385)
Cancelled during the period - - - (100000 - (60,000] = = (8077) (265384) (433,461)
Outstanding at balance
date and exeicisable 580,000 207,692 280,000 150,000 250,000 80,000 250,000 450,000 404312 - 2,652,004
lssued siuibsequent to balance daté - - - - - - - s s = =
Exercised subsequiant to balance date - o ,_'(1:6,000) = - - = (65,000) (34312 +:(135,312)
Cancelled subseguent to balance date: - - - = - - - - = " -
Outstanding at date of Directors’ '
Report and exercisable 580,000 207,692 264,000 150,000 250,000 80,000 250,000 385000 350,000 = 2,516,692
Number of recipients 6 1 4 2 1 2 7 5 6 6
Exercise price $1.00¢ 55¢ . 90¢: 90¢ 90¢ 80¢ 80¢ 80¢  43.33¢  43.33¢
Exercise period:  From 23/12/03  23/7/03. 17/01/03 22/11/02 14/12/01 25/05/01 11/12/00 10/03/00 10/03/00 28/10/98
To 23/11/08 31/7/65 SA7/12/07 2210007 14/11/06 - 25/04/06  11/11/05  10/09/04 10/09/04  31/07/03
Expiration daté 23/11/08 31/7/05 "-'_17/12_/0'7- 22110007 14/11/06 | 25/04006 11/11/05  10/09/04 10/09/04 31/07/03.
(i) Information relating to options exercised by employees during the year énidéd 30 June 2004
Number of shares issued _ SRR o
Issue date: 10/07/03 - - = - - - - = ~ 34616
207103 - - = - - - - = ~ 57692
23/07/03 - = - - - - - = 13,000 o
06/08/03 - - - - - 40,000 - - 8,077 -
Exercise Price paid by Employees .
Issue daté: 10/07/03 - - - - - = - = = 14999 -
22/07/03 - - - = - - = - ~ 24,998
23/07/03 - - - = - < = - 5633 -
06/08/03 - - - - -~ 32,000 - = 3500 -
Fair value of shares issued .
Issue date: 10/07/03 - - - - - = = ~ 27,693
22/07/03 - - - - - - - - ~ 45577
23/07/03 - ! - - B - = 10,140 b
06/08/03 - - - -, 37,600 - = 7592 =

Fair value of shares issued durihg the reporting perio_d is estj(néfed to be the market price of shares of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Lirnited on the Australian S',to,ck

Exchange as at close of trading on the respective iss_de_da_tér's_{- S




30 Juné 2005 30 June 2004,

$ $
12. Earnings per Share
Basic éarnings per share (cents fef share) {4.68) (4.42)
Diluted éarnings per share (cents per share)(i) (4.68) (4.42)
(a) The following reflects the income and share data used
in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS:.
Net [655 used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share (10,764,589 (9,543,526)

(b) Number of Ordinary Shares
Weighted average numbeér of ordinhary shares on issue used

in the calculation of basic earnings per shate 230,106,955 216,053,965
Effect of dilutive securities: v
Share options 1,329,357 1,846,875
Potential ordinary shares that are not. dllutlve and are excluded CRL L e
from the calculation of diluted earnings per share .. 350,000 930,000 . 39
(il Asthe Company has incurred a loss for the penod under review, potential ordinary shares, '
being options to acquvre ordinary shares, are conS|dered non-dilutive and therefore not included
in the diluted earnings per share calculation, .
13. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows -
(aj Reconciliation of Cash’ o :
For the purpose of the statement of tash flows, cash includes cash at bank.and
investments in money market instruments. The Company has no borrowings. Cash
at the end of the financial year as sthh in the statement of cash flows is reconciled
to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows: IR
el 127,358 26,984 1

Cash at banig .

Short-term deposits : 16,850,000 17,320,000.

17,077,358 17,346,984 ...

(b) Reconcthatlon of Net Operatlng Cash Flow Actlvmes to Operatlng Loss After Income Tax

Net Loss (10,764,589) (9,543,526), . .
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation - 262,621 164,950
Asset not paid for at yearend = (356,140)
Issue of options for services provided « - - 101,500 -
Change in assets and liabilities during the financial year:
(lncrease)/decrease in interest receivable 50,214 {99,378)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets ‘ 361,286 102,366
Increase/(decrease) in payables A (655,182) 707,328
!ncrease/(decrease) in employee prowsmns 93,160 46,050
(10,652,490 (8,876,850) 7 -

Net cash used in operatmg actnvmes o

() Investlng Act|vmes B L L R
0] Payment dunng the year of $478 950 for plant and eqmpment included
$356 ‘!40 for eqmpment acquued in the prewous financial year.
(i) Subscr:pnon monies of $500 000 for 1 250 OOO Shares at $0.40 per,
share in the initial public offerlng of Neuren Pharmaceutlcals Limited
(ASX Code: NEU) issued on 28 January 2005.

METATULIL PHAAMALCEUTICALS L!‘?‘ﬂH"E‘D iﬂL‘.‘{UiUAL Af Pﬂgif’ﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

13. Notes to the Statément of Cash Flows (continued)

14.

(d) Financing and Ihvesting Activities .
During the year 19,307,548 ordinary shdres were issued and contributed equity incredsed by $11,361,813:

N&; of Shares Issued: $
Exercise of Optians;
Unlisted options (ASX Codé: MEPAU) issuéd in the prévious
financial year for sefvicés provided 166,667 208,334
Unlisted etployae options (ASX Code: MBPAM) 1,562,004 676,816
Unlisted éfriployée options (ASX Codé: MBPAO) 1,100,000 880,000
Unilisted emiployee options (ASX Code: MBPAQ) 16,200 14,590
Unlisted employee options (ASX Codé: MBPAS) 69,231 38,077
Private Placement -
Private placement of ordlnary shares to rnstrtutronal and professronal investors 16,393,446 10,000,001
Total shares issued d_ur__mg the year. i 19,307,548 1,1,817,818‘,.‘ S
Reduction to equity:" ' S o i
Capital raising costs recogmsed asa reductron rn equrty - (479,007)"
Monies held intrust e
Monies held in trust for issue of shares under the Company's Share Purchase Plan ) = - 23,002

19,307,548 11,361,813 ..

Director and Executive Disclosures .

(a)  Details of Specified Directors and, Speci_fl'ed lE*eCut_iv'es

Specified directors ! i
Dr Arthur Emmett _ } ‘Executlve)

DrRofand Scollay . Drrector (Chlef Execlitive Offrcer)

Dr Chris Belyea L Drrector (Chief Scientific: Offrcer)

DrEvert Vos . o " . . Director (Non‘Executrve) L

M Patrick Sutch: 'E.‘Drrector (Non Executrve) _

Specified executives - L :

Mr David Kenley1 _' VICE Presrdent - Corporate Development & Joint Company Secretary
Dr Caroline Herd Vice Presiderit= Clinical Development

Ms Belinda Shave Financial Controller & Joint Comnpany Secretary

Dr Mary Saleh Vice Presrdent Research

' Mr David Kenley ceased to be a Company Secrerary of Metabohc on 23 December 2004 and resigned from Metabolic effective from 1 July 2005,

(o) Remuneration of Specrfred Dnrectors and Specrfred Executives

) Remunerat/on Po/rcy

The Remuneratron Commlttee of Metabollc Pharmaceutrcals Limited is responsrble for determining and reviewing compensatlon
es; The Remuneration Commrttee -assasses the appropriateness of the nature and i

arrangements for the Drrectors and Exe i

amount of emoluments of such OffIC 'S
of the Company and the general pay envrronment to ensue that pohoes and pract|ces enable the Company to attract, motivate

and retain Drrectors and Executrves who wrll create value for shareholders
The Board is responsrble for revrewrng |ts own performance The Remuneratron Comimittee is responsible for evaluating the'

performance of the Chref Executrve Offlcer who |n turn evaluates the performance of all other Senicr Executives. The evaluatron

process is rntended to assess the C ompanys busrness performance whether long-tem strategic objectives are being achleved
and the achievement of lndlwdual performance objectlves

by consuderlng the performance of Executlve Directors and Executives, the performance .




14. Director and Executiva Disclosures (cohtinued)

(i) Employee Share Option Pian ¢
In »F-iebruary 2000 the Compahy estabvl_‘ished‘the Metabolic Eriployze Share Optioni Plan whgre the Company may; at the discretion
of rqanagement, grant options over the ordinary shares of Metaholic Pharmiaceuticals Limited to Specified Directors and Spe‘ci_fie‘d .
E‘x'esutlves, subject to{shareholder approval as fequired. The dptions, issued for nominal consideration, &ré granited in accordance.
with performance guidelines established by the directors of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited, although the méanagement of
Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited retains the finat discretion on the issue of the options. The options are issued for varying termis
rqngmg from' 54 to 53 months and are exercisable beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Thie options cannot
be transferred arid will not be quoted on the ASX. There are currently Directors, Executives and staff eligiblé for this scherie.
Directors and Specified Executives ware not granted any optioris during the year under review as part of their remuneration.
(i) Details of remuneration
For the year-ended 30 June 2005, details of the remuneration of each Specified DJ%ec_tor and Specified Executive dre set
out in the tables below.
. "Primary benefits Post Employment  Egjiiity: Other Totali.
mo ) benefits S
Directors Salary &' " ‘Cash. Consulting . ‘Non-,. .- Super- ‘Retire- Options.  Other
Fees. . bonuses” "Fees “monetary: annuation ment " (iii)&(iv)’
sy benefits benéfits
(i)
DI Rolafid Scollay' 2005 132,180 - - 2,109 10,321 - = 20,000 164,610 .
(CEO / Managing Directar 2004 21,000 - - - - - = - 21,000
and former Non-Executive Director) ) L
Dr Chris Belyea 2005 250,008 © . - < 5061 22,501 - = - 277,570
{Chief Scientific Officer and 2004 250,008 - ~ 4,217 22,501 - 29,751 - 306,477.
former CEO / Managing Director) -
Dr Arthur Emmett 2005 66462 . - ~ - 4,387 & = - 701.849, o
{Chaifman & Non-Executive Chaiman) 2004 50000 ¢ " = .+ ~ - 4,500 - 10,287 - o
DrEvert Vos' ” 2005 - 32,000 - . 51,069 - R - - -
{Non-Executive Director) +2004 ..32,000.0: 0 - 52,009 - - S == 29,751 -
Mr Patrick Sutch -~ 2005 3 Ea - - - -
(Non-Executive Director) 2004 - - S - - - - -
Total remuneration for Directors 2005 - 510,650 =70 UB1,069 07,1707 137,209 - - 20,000
LT ito'2004 356,758 0 n =l 52,0097 74,217 27001 . - 69,789 -
Aggregate of Directors’ Remuneration 370,258 . B9509. - 28,216 - 99,540 -
disclosed in the 2004 Annuaf Report? " Co e B
Specified Executives . T
Mr David Kenley® 2005 205,257 . 10,000 - 5,061 19,390 - - - 239.7:08‘ S
(Vice Fresident - Corporate 2004 136,050 ' 35,845 - 4,217 15,471 - 22,313 - 213,89‘6“ !
Development & Joint
Company Secretary) )
Ms Belinda Shave 2005 114,694 10,000 - 5,061 11,222 - 11,602 = 152,579,
(Financial Controller & 2004 - 107,165 - 4,000 = 4,217 10,005 - 4,210 - 129,597.}
Company Secretary) o sl L
Dr Carcline Herd ) 2005 161,772 _."":‘1‘0,00(‘) ’ - 5,061 15,459 - 12,848 = 205,140 .
Vice Pres/denr-Clin/calDeve/meent) 2004 - 112,445 'le,OOOY ’ - 4217 _ , 11:,020 ’ - 10,577 - 148,259
DrMarySaleh - %70 2005 101,411 Gom5081 o 9307 - 957 - 118,736
{Vice President — Research) " . 2004 .. 79,579 " : S 4.217. - 7162 - 5,949.- - 9690 ‘
Total remuneration 'for e 2005, 583,134 "';».32,,01?'05' iis 020244 7 v 55378 - 25,407 - 716,163 L
‘ 49,845 ;. = 16,868 .0 - 43,658 - 43,049 - 588,659 -

Specified Executives '+

Notes L )
7 OrRoland Scoflay w

Director since November 2002. The amoun

2004 |

435,239 .

és'abpof}vted CEQ /.Mz;né;qing b[re_ctb‘r éﬁ.‘ 7 Fé‘bﬁ‘(éfy 2005 Prior to this appdiﬁrmént, Dr Sco)/ay had served on the Board as a Non-Executive .
t disclosed for Safary & Fees for 2005 inclirdes §17,500 Non-Executive Director's Fees paid to Dr Scollay from 1 July 2004. ‘

10 31 January 2005. . -7 IR AL F RN L - . o ' .
ed his role as CE 0/ Managing Director effective 31 January 2005, to take up the position of Chief Scientific Officer on 1 February 2005.

2 Dr Chris Belyea relinguish

w

specified in the 2004 Annual Regort.

5 My David Kenley ceased to be a Company Secretary of

Dr Evert Vos was paid consultancy fees of §51,069 for additions! services for 2004-05.
4 These amounts represent the aggregate of Directors’ reimi

Metabolic on 23 December 2004 and resigned from Metabolic on 1 july 2005.

] :

ar e b

METABOULIL PHARBALEUTICALY LIMITER  ANNHOAL 3

uneration disclosed in the 2004 Annual Report. The Directors specified in this report are different to those
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

14. Director and Executivé Disclosures (cortinued)

Notes {continued)

(i) Bonuses
Individual performance reviews iWeére conducted in September 2004. Cash bonuses included i the rémuneration of Specified Executives were granted in Novémber .
2004, based on qualitative individial performante derermmed dunng the formal réview protcéss, .

(i) Non-monetary Benefits
Nen-monetaly benefits consist salély of the valie of car parkrng benefits.

(iif) Fair Value of Options — current period
For'the period under review; the fair value of equity based remuneration, disclosed in the. table-above, was determlned usifig a binomial option pnclng model: This
rnodel takes into account, as at grant date, the exercise pFice and expected life of the opticn, the vesting criteria, the cUfrent price of the under/yrng share and its
expected volatility expected dividends and the risk-free interest rate for the expected lifé of the option. The equity based remuneration incliided in thé table above
relates to options issued pursuant to the Metabolic Employee Share Option Plan which havé ah éxpify date between 54 and 59 months with staggered vesting ferms
based on anniversary periods. The option-pricing Model values each of these vesting portions separately. Accordingly thé amomsed equity remuneration disclosed in the
table above reflects the apportioned valye of the options during the year ended 30 june 2005. During the pericd undeér review, no amount hias been included in the
equity based remuneration section for each Directof or Mr David Kenley as there were fio options granted to those individuals during this period and options previously

granted had all vested priaf to the:current period.
Currently the amomsed fair values are not recognised as an expense in the financial statements and no adjustments hiavé been made or will beé made to.reverse amounts
préviously disclosed in relation to options that never Vest or are not exerc:sed (i.e. actual forfeitures). s

{iv) Fair Value of Options - previous period : - .
The fair value of the prior year equity. based remuneranon d/sclosed in the rable above, was determiined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, The price: .-

modeled value of the options were amomsed and disclosed on'a stralght -line baSIS from the date of grant until expiry. This model took into account, as at grant date o
the exertise price, the expected life of the aption, the vesting criteria, the current price of the underlying share and its expected volatiiiy, expected dividends and the risk -

free interest rate for the expected life of the option.

For the period under review, the fair value of each option is estimated using a binomial option pricing model as indicated in (jii) above, with
the following assumptions:

Optioris granted on Total =

Options grarited ori
23 Decémber 2003

Opﬁons granted on’
22 November 2002

Options grahtéﬁ'on’_
14 December 2001:

11 December'2000+

Binomial Option
Pricing Model Variables

Exercise price : $"0'.:80- S $0.90 $0.90 $1.00
Risk-free interest rate - - ' 5.33% 5.22% 5.56%
Volatility & o ‘_ 35%. o 3% 35%
Expiry Date: 1 Novémber 2005 - 14 November 2006 22 October 2007 23 November 2008
Dividend yield , ‘ : fi;‘ - . - - -
Average Fair Value per option (cents) 78 180 16.0 26.0
Name Number and Value
of Options for the
year ended 30.06.05
Ms Belinda Shave  Number of options 120,000 120,000
Value for year . ‘
ended 30.06.05 ($11,602  $11,602 .
Dr Caroline Herd ~ Number of Qﬁtions 250,000 150,000 400,000,
Value for year. S
$6,791, .. -$6,057

ended 30.06.05. "

Df Mary Saleh Numbvér‘ of dﬁtibné - 00
Vaiueforyear ' S R o
ended 30.0,6_,05_ : ‘$957Q $95.7‘

e b et s e b




14, Director and Executive Disclosuires (contiriued)

(@  Equity instrument disclosures relating to Specified Directors and Specified Executives

() Options or shares provided as femiuneration '
Details of unquoted optjons over unissued ordinary shares in Metabolic provided as remufieratiori to eachi Spécified Dir'ecto_f_'a'hd"' o
each Specified Executive are set out below. The'exercise _of each option entitles the holdef 16 one Crdinary Fully Paid Share in- -
the Company which rank equally with existing Ordinary Fully Paid Shares. No amounts aré unpaid on any shares issued on the
éxercise of options.
No options have beei granted to Specified Directars or Specified Execlitives during the périod under review:

(i) Option holdings
Details of the moverents i th& number of optiois over ordinary shares in Metabdilic held during the financial year; and vested
during the year, by each Directér and Specified Executive, afe sét out below:

Remuneration Option Holdings of Specified Directors and Specified Exécutives including nuiber granted
and vested during the year

Vested &t 30 June 2005
Balance . Granted as': . 'j'C_')pt_ioh's‘.-'.__f © Net-  Balance:  Vested' Exer- Unexer-
01/07/04. " remuner--....exercised Other: = “Held: ~ total tisable'  cisable
ation - Change-  30/06/05"

Specified Director
Dr Roland Scollay - 2 - - - - - = e
Dr Chris Belyea 1,000,000 = (323,077) (400,000) 276,923 276,923 276,923 = -
Dr Arthur Emmett 500,000 = (257,6_92) (1 5Q,OOQ) 92,308 92,308 92,308 - ST
Dr Evert Vos 1,000,000 - (323,077) (400,000) 276,923 276,923 276,923 = K =
Mr Patrick Sutch - - - = - - = = -
Specified Executives - o
Mr David Kenley 750,000 _ - ..::"(5»42_,4308)_1_ - 207,592 207,692 207,692 -
Dr Caroline Herd 400,000 . .- (100). - 399,900 234,900 234900 165,000
MsBelinda Shave  180,000. . . . -...(60,000) . - . 120,000 - 24,000 24000 96,000
DrMarySaleh - 250000 *. . iin it o - 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 -
Total 4,080,000 . . = (1,506,254)_ (950,000) 1,623,746 1,362,746 1,362,746 261,000

(i) Sharéhbldihgs_ o ‘ - e
Details of the movements in the number of ordir ‘
and each Specified Executive, including their personally-related entities, are set out befow:

néry Sha(és in Meta.b'olic held during the financial year by each Specified Dire'cfgb

Shareholdings of Specified Directors and-Specified Executives

Balance “Granted as On-Exercise of  Net Change Othef Balance Held " -
01/07/04 remuneration Options (sale or purchase 30/06/05%:
of shares)

Specified Director L . 3
Dr Roland Scollay f - - - -
Dr Chris Belyea .1_4_1_,000‘ DS o= 323,077 - 464,077 .
Dr Arthur Emmett . 136,500 . - ... 257,692 - 394,192 -
Dr Evert Vos 60,000 . 323,077 ~ {100,000)
Mr Patrick Sutch L A - SN -
Specified Executivés Lo S ‘
Mr David Kenley - 01615023 e 1542,308 (720,010)
Dr Caroline Herd™ "/ o580t e ~ 100 1,000 00T
Ms Belinda Shave . - . ‘85,400 - 60,0‘OO - 145,.{1,_00’;
Dr Mary Saleh : - - = - o —
Total 2,037,923 - - 1,506,254 (820,010 2,724,167

* Balance of shares held at 30 Juné 2005 include difect!& held, nominally held shares and shares held by personally-refated entitites.

=
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NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

14; Director and Executive Disclosires {contintigd)

{iv)  Shares issited to Spécified Directors and Specified Executives on exercise of Remuneration Options for yest efided 30 Juné 2005

Shares issugd Numbér § per share Paid § per share Unpaid -
Specified Directors
Dr Chiis Belyea 323,077 $0.43 $0.00
Dr Arthur Efmiett. 107,692 $0.43 i‘o’.oo
| 150,000 1$0.80 $6.00
Dr Evert Vo3 323,077 $0.43 $0.00
Specified Executives
Mr David Kenley 242,308 $0.43 $0.00
T 300,000 $0.80 $0.00
Dr Caroline Herd 00 $0.90 $0.00.
Ms Belinda Shave S © 60,000 $0.80 $0.00 0 ¢

Total 1506254

15. Related Party Dlsdosures
Other than as disclosed in the Directors and Spectﬁed Execunve Discldsures section of the financial statemeits (noté 14), there were no-
transactions with related parties during the period ‘under feview.

30 Jurie 2005 30 June 2004
$ $

16. Remuneration of Audltors

Audit Servnces v N
Amounts recelved or due and recelvabfe by Ernst & Young, for the audit
and review of the ﬂnancral reports ; AR

32,000 21,500

= half and qu-year audn;s .
Audit Serwces total for enmy audltors ) 132000 21,500,
Non-Audit Serv:ces B . s o
Amounts received, or due and recelvable for other sennces by Ernst & Young: S
- preparation of tax return 2,000 2.000° .-
- grant audits - 6,500 -

- o 8,500

- due diligence services ' _
Non-audit Services total for entity aud:tors 2,000 17,000
Total for entity auditors. cT 34,000 38,500

The directors are satisfied that the prov:svon of nen- -audit serwces during the current period is compatible with the general standard of ‘
independence for auditors |mposed by the Corporatlons Act The nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means

that auditor mdependence was not compromlsed S

17. Corporate Informatlon »
Metabolic Pharmaceu‘ncals Limited i ss a company hrmted by shares that is mcorporated and domlaled in Australia.

18. Segment lnformat:on

The Company operates predommantly in one lndustry and one geographxcal segment th
industry and Australia, respectlvely and relevam fmanual mformatvon is presented in the St

ose bemg the pharmaceutical and healthcarel_ ‘
atement of Financial Position and Statement '

of Financial Performance:




18.

20,

21.

Fair Valiie of Financial Instruments
(@  The carrying arrounts of cash assets (current), réceivables (curtent) and payables approximate their fair values.

(b)  THe Company's maximiurh éxposure to credit risk at reporting daite in relation to eacﬁu’class of recégnised finaricial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position,

30 June 2005 30 June 2004°
$ $
Commitments
(@  Opérating office lease expenditure contracted fof; i5 payabie:
-~ Within the period &f 12 months 146,476 171,876
= Within the period of 12 rhonths to 5 years 162,946 28,646
Obérating Leases have ari avérage lease term of 3 years:
(b} Commitments to various contractors and supplrers payable
~ Within the period of 12 months." R F 2,435,472 3217450 .
~ Within the period of 12 months to 5 'yearS' AR ‘ 23,666 = 45

imipact of Adoptlng Australran Equrvalents to lnternatronal Financial Reportmg Standards

Metabolic Pharmaceuticals errted is |n the process of transmonrng its accounting policies and financial reporting from current
Australian Accounting Standards (AGAAP) to Australran Equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) which will
be applicable for the financial year endlng 30 June 2006, The Company has allocated internal resources and engaged its external
auditor to conduct an impact assessment ) identify key areas |mpacted by, the transmon to AIFRS. The opening balance sheet at 1 July’ .
2004, the Company's transition date to AIFRS, has been prepared in accordance with AIFRS This balance sheet will form the basis of
accounting for AIFRS in the future, and is requrred when the Company prepares its first fully AIFRS compliant financial report for the

year ending 30 June 2006
The key area where accountrng polrcres are [ ected to change on adoptlon of AIFRS is under AASB 2 Share Based Payments.

(i) AASB 2 Share Based Payment N .
Under AASB 2, the Company wrll Tecoghise 1 the falr value of optrons granted to employees as remuneration since 7 November
2002, that had not vested by 1 January 2005 a5 an expense on a pro-fata basrs over the vestrng period in the income statement
with a correspondrng adJustment to equrty Thrs would result in a decrease in proflt under AIFRS compared to AGAAP. o

It has been estrmated that the cumulat e in pact of the fair value of optrons granted to employees as remuneration to 30 June :
2005 is $165,853, bemg $87,084 cumulatlve to 1 July 2004 and $78,769 for the’ year ended 30 June 2005. Accordingly the
accumulated losses of the Company at 30 June 2005 will increase by $165,853 from $44,879,716 to $45,045,569.

30 June 2005%* 1July 2008% .
$ $
Reconciliation of equity as. presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS
Total equity under AGAAP : ' 17,281,740 16,684,516
Adjustments to retained earpings (net of tax)
- Recognmon of share based payment expense L B (165,853) (87,084)
: S e e (165,853) (87,084)

Adjustmehtstéﬂotl_tef réservés' (ne_t'of rax) : : o
- Recognition of sl'ha're-"based‘ payment éxpens 165,853 87.084
R 165,853 87,084 -

17,281,740 16,684,516

Total equity under AlFRS

* This column represents the adjustments as at the date of transition to AIFRS
*+  This column represents the cumu]atn/e adlustments as at the date of transition
to AIFRS (1/7/04) and those for the year ended 30 June 2005,

Afvhdflt HEPORy 2565
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS year ended 30 June 2005

Impact of Adoptirig Australian Equivalerits to Irternational Financial Reporting Standards (continuedy
(iiy Intangible Assets - Research and Developmient Costs.- ¥

Under AASB 138 Intangible Assets, costs incurred in the research phase of the development of an intérnally generated
intangible asset would be expensed The Company’s current accounting policy allows for the capitalisation of such costs
where future benefits are expected beyond reasonable doubt. Currently no research and development costs havé been
capitalised, therefore there is no quantitative impact on total equity as at the date of transition to AIFRS dr on het profit

for the year ended 30 June 2005.

(ili) Income Taxes
AASB 112 Income Taxes requires the use of a balance sheet liability method, rather than thé current ircome staterhent method
which recogriises deferred tax balances where there is a difference between the carryirig valug of an asset or liability aid its
tax base. Under AGAAP, the tax effects of differences between cost base and tax base for an asset or liability is not recognised.
Currently no tax assets for timing differences are recognised, This will be consistent under AIFRS.

In relation fo tax losses carried forWard AASB 1 12 requires recognition of a deferred tax asset 1o the extet that it is probable - :
there will be future taxable profrts avallable agalnst which the unused losses can be utilised. By contrast, AGAAP permits

recognition of a deferred tax asset where ‘recovery is wrtually certarn Management do not believe that there is a quantitative . -
impact on total equrty as at the date of transmon to AIFRS aron net profrt for the year ended 30 June 2005. R

(iv) Financial lnstruments
AASB 139 Fmancra/ Instruments Recogn/t/on and Measurement requwes the Company to record at fair value all of its
investments in “available for sale” financial assets. This will impact the Company’s investment in Neuren Pharmaceutical errted

Under AGAAP, this investment has been recorded at the lower of cost and market value.

Management has decided to apply the exemptlon provrded in AASB 1 F/rst-tlme Adopt/on of Australian Equivalents to
International Firancial Reporting Standards which permits entities not to apply the requirements of AASB 139 for the financial .- .
year ended 30 June 2005. AASB 139 Wili be aopl'i‘ed from 1 July 2005. The upward revaluation of the Neuren investment of
$62,500 will be recognlsed drrectly |n equrty at 1 July 2005, through the Statement of Changes in Equity.

mates of the quantrtatlve |mpact of the changes as at the date of preparing the
cts of transmon 0 AIFRS rnay dlffer from the. estrmates dlsclosed due to potential
ereg .emergrng accepted practice in the |nterpretatron and application of AIFRS -

The figures drsclosed are. managements
30 June 2005 frnancral report, The actual e

amendments to AIFRSs and interpretatro
and UIG |nterpretatrons and ongorng work erng ndertaken by the AIFRS prorect team




INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORY E ERNST & YOUNG

independent audit report to members of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited

Scope

The financial repott and directors' responsibility, - _

The finanicial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performanice, staterient of cash fiows,
accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for Metabolic Pharmiacéuticals Limited (the company),
for the year ended 30 June 2005. ‘

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view of thé financial position and
performance of the company, and that complies with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordaricé with the Corporations Act 2001.
This includes résponsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting recerds and internal controls that are designed 6 preverit and
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an mdependent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the company.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australran Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether

the financial report is free of matenal misstatement; The nature of an audit s influenced by factors such as the use off professional SRS B
judgement, selective testing, the |nherent l|m|tatron"‘of |ntern control and the avallablllty of f persuaswe rather than conclusive ST 47
evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee"tha all mat mtsstatements have’ been detected s

We performed procedures to| assess whether in all. matenal respects the frnancral report presents fairly, in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including compliance W|th Accountmg Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting
requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understandlng of the company’s financia! position, and of their

performance as represented by the results of their operat:ons and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures Wthh included:
examining, on a test basis, information to provrde evrdence supportmg the amounts and d|sclosures in the financial report, and

assessing the appropnateness of. the accountmg pohcres and drsclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting

estimates made by the drrectors ‘ _ ‘
While we consndered the effectweness of managements mternal controls over f:nancral reportrng when determining the nature
and extent of our procedures our audlt was not desrgned to provrde assurance on rnternal controls
We performed procedures to assess whether the subst e of busmess transactrons was accurately reflected in the financial report.
These and our other procedures dxd not include constderatton orJudgement of the appropnateness or reasonableness of the business
plans or strategies adopted by the dlrectors and anagement of the company : : :

Independence- :
We are independent of the company, and have met the'independence requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements
and the Corporations Act 2001. We have given to the d|rectors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration a copy

of which is included in the Drrectors Report. In addmon to our audrt of the financial report, we were engaged to undertake the services
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The provmon of these sefvices has not impaired our independence.

Audit opinion N B :
In our opinicn, the fmanoal report of Metabolrc Pharmaceutrcals L|m|ted is in accordance with:

(a) the Corporanons Act 2001 lncludmg . .
(i) giving a'true and fair V|ew of the fmancral posmon of Metabohc Pharmaceutlcals L|m|ted at 30 June 2005

and of their per‘formance for the year ended on that date and
(ii) complylng wrth Accountlng Standards in Australla and the Corporat ons Regulatlons 2001 and

ents in Austraha

(b) other mandatory fmanoal reportmg requ

_Dems Tho.rn e
Partner ..

Ernst & Young Melbourne Liability limited by the Accountant’s Scheme, approved
25 August 2005 under the Professional Standards Act 1994 (NSW)
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK DATHANGL B s NS

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchangs Centre

Level 4 , 20 Bridge Strest
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE FO Box H224

Austrafia Square
DATE: 27/09/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 10:48:18 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Intemet http/faww.asx.com.au
TO: METABOLIC PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney

FAX NO: 03-9860-5777
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Release of Securities from Escrow-Monash Investment HldgsP/L

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX's lrading system. This means thal irading in your company’s securilies is lemporarily stopped, Lo
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcenients but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcenients.

Once “pre-open” period {s completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Lisiing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




metabolic

27 September 2005

The Companies Section,

The Australian Stock Exchange Limited
530 Collins Street

Melbourne, Vic. 3000

Dear Sir/Madam

Re: Monash Investment Holdings Pty. Ltd.
Release of Securities from Escrow

In accordance with Listing Rule 3.10A we advise that 21,677,520 ordinary fully paid
ordinary shares (representing 8.52% of Metabolic’s issued shares) held by Monash
Investment Holdings Pty. Ltd. will be released from a two year voluntary escrow period
on 13 October 2005.

Yours sincerely,

Phie

Belinda Shave
Company Secretary

METABOLIC. PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ABN 85 083 866 862
Level 3,508 St Kilda-Road, Melbourne, Victoria 3004, Australia | Telephone +61{3) 9860 5700 | Facsimile +81{3) 9860°5777 | Website www.metabiolic.com.au




